FREE TRADE AGREEMENT BETWEEN MERCOSUR AND THE ARAB REPUBLIC OF EGYPT

TABLE OF CONTENTS

PREAMBLE

CHAPTERS

CHAPTER I GENERAL PROVISIONS
SECTION II INITIAL PROVISIONS
SECTION II TRADE IN GOODS

SECTION III INVESTMENT AND SERVICES **SECTION IV** INSTITUTIONAL PROVISIONS

CHAPTER II DEFINITION OF THE CONCEPT OF "ORIGINATING GOODS"

SECTION I GENERAL PROVISIONS

SECTION II CRITERIA FOR ORIGINATING GOODS

SECTION III PROOF OF ORIGIN

SECTION IV CONTROL AND VERIFICATION OF CERTIFICATES OF ORIGIN

SECTION V REVIEW AND AMENDMENT

CHAPTER III PREFERENTIAL SAFEGUARDS

SECTION I DEFINITIONS

SECTION II CONDITIONS FOR APPLICATION OF PREFERENTIAL SAFEGUARD

MEASURES

SECTION III INVESTIGATION AND TRANSPARENCY PROCEDURES

SECTION IV NOTIFICATIONS AND CONSULTATIONS

SECTION V LEVEL OF CONCESSIONS

CHAPTER IV DISPUTES SETTLEMENT

SECTION I APPLICATION OF THE CHAPTER

SECTION II CONSULTATIONS

SECTION III JOINT COMMITTEE INTERVENTION

SECTION IV MEDIATION

SECTION V ARBITRATION PROCEDURE

SECTION VI COMPLIANCE

SECTION VII GENERAL PROVISIONS

CHAPTER V FINAL PROVISIONS

ANNEXES

ANNEX I.1 ORIGINATING GOODS IN EGYPT IMPORTED INTO MERCOSUR ORIGINATING GOODS IN MERCOSUR IMPORTED INTO EGYPT

ANNEX II.1 MERCOSUR-EGYPT CERTIFICATE OF ORIGIN

ANNEX II.2 DECLARATION BY THE EXPORTER

	EXPLANATORY NOTE – ARTICLE 21 – CERTIFICATES OF ORIGIN ISSUED RETROSPECTIVELY – "TECHNICAL REASONS" SPECIFIC RULES OF ORIGIN
ANNEX IV.1	CODE OF CONDUCT FOR ARBITRATORS OF THE ARBITRATION TRIBUNAL
ANNEX IV.2	RULES OF PROCEDURE

PREAMBLE

The Arab Republic of Egypt (hereinafter referred to as "Egypt"), on the one part, and the Argentine Republic, the Federative Republic of Brazil, the Republic of Paraguay, and the Oriental Republic of Uruguay (hereinafter referred to as "Member States of MERCOSUR"), on the other part,

RECALLING the membership of Egypt and the MERCOSUR Member States in the World Trade Organization (hereinafter referred to as the "WTO") and their commitment to comply with the rights and obligations arising from the Marrakech Agreement establishing the WTO (hereinafter referred to as the "WTO Agreement"),

CONSIDERING the Framework Agreement signed by Egypt and MERCOSUR on July 7th, 2004,

DESIRING to create more favorable conditions for the sustainable development, new employment opportunities and diversification of trade between them and for the promotion of commercial and economic co-operation in areas of common interest on the basis of equality, mutual benefit, non-discrimination and international law,

DESIRING to contribute to the strengthening of the multilateral trading system,

DECLARING their readiness to examine the possibility of developing and deepening their economic relations by extending the fields covered by this Agreement,

EXPRESSING their willingness:

- a) to increase and enhance their economic co-operation to raise the living standards of their populations;
- b) to eliminate difficulties and restrictions on trade in goods, including agricultural goods;
- c) to promote, through the expansion of reciprocal trade, the harmonious development of their economic relations;
- d) to provide fair conditions of trade competition;
- e) to create conditions for further encouragement of investments particularly for the development of joint investments; and,
- f) to promote trade and co-operation between them in third country markets;

AGREE TO:

CHAPTER I GENERAL PROVISIONS

SECTION I INITIAL PROVISIONS

Article 1 - Contracting and Signatory Parties

For the purposes of this Agreement, the "Contracting Parties" (hereinafter referred to as "Parties") are MERCOSUR and Egypt. The "Signatory Parties" are the Argentine Republic, the Federative Republic of Brazil, the Republic of Paraguay, and the Oriental Republic of Uruguay, Member States of MERCOSUR, and Egypt.

Article 2 - Definitions

- 1. "Customs duties" include duties and charges of any kind imposed in connection with the importation of a good, including any form of surtaxes or surcharges in connection with such importation, but do not include any:
 - a) charges equivalent to internal taxes imposed consistently with Article III: 2 of the General Agreement on Tariffs and Trade (hereinafter referred to as "GATT") 1994 and its interpretative notes in respect of like, directly competitive or substitutable goods of the Party or the Signatory Party, or in respect of goods from which imported goods have been manufactured or produced in whole or in part;
 - b) anti-dumping or countervailing duties imposed in accordance with Articles VI and XVI of GATT 1994, the WTO Agreement on Implementation of Article VI of GATT 1994 and the WTO Agreement on Subsidies and Countervailing Measures;
 - c) safeguard duties or levies imposed in accordance with Article XIX of GATT 1994, the WTO Agreement on Safeguards and Article 17 of this Chapter; and,
 - d) other fees or charges imposed consistently with Article VIII of GATT 1994.
- 2. "Charges having equivalent effect" are charges imposed on imported goods, and not imposed on domestic goods of the Party or the Signatory Party. They do not include internal taxes, fees or tariffs.
- 3. "Fee" means any payment for a service supplied by a government authority or in the exercise of governmental authority in connection with the importation of a good consistent with the provisions of Article VIII of GATT 1994 and its interpretative notes.

- 4. "Good" means a domestic good as this is understood in GATT 1994 or such a good as the Parties or the Signatory Parties may agree, and includes an originating good of these Signatory Parties. A good includes a good being manufactured even if it is intended for later use in another manufacturing production.
- 5. "Harmonized System" means the Harmonized Commodity Description and Coding System, and its General Rules of Interpretation, Section notes and Chapter notes, as adopted and implemented by the Parties.
- 6. "Measure" includes any law, regulation, procedure, requirement or practice.
- 7. "Originating good or material" means a good or material that qualifies as originating under the provisions of Chapter II.
- 8. "Territory" means for a Signatory Party the territory of that Signatory Party.

Article 3 - Establishment of the Free Trade Area

The Parties and Signatory Parties to this Agreement, consistent with Article XXIV of the GATT 1994 and the Decision on Differential and More Favorable Treatment, Reciprocity and Fuller Participation of Developing Countries of 1979, hereby establish a free trade area.

Article 4 - Relations to Multilateral Agreements

The Parties and Signatory Parties affirm their rights and obligations with respect to each other in accordance with the WTO Agreement.

Article 5 - Trade Relations Governed by other Agreements

This Agreement shall not prevent the maintenance or establishment of customs unions, free trade areas or any other arrangements for cross-border trade of the Parties with third countries.

Article 6 - Internal Taxation

- 1. The Parties and Signatory Parties shall apply any internal taxes and other charges and regulations in accordance with Article III of the GATT 1994 and other relevant WTO Agreements.
- 2. Nothing in this Agreement shall affect the rights and obligations of any Party or Signatory Party under any tax convention and/or agreement to which they are party to avoid double taxation. In the event of any inconsistency between this Agreement and that convention and/or agreement, that convention and/or agreement shall prevail to the extent of the inconsistency.

SECTION II TRADE IN GOODS

Article 7 - Trade Liberalization

The provisions of this Section shall apply to originating goods in the Signatory Parties except as otherwise provided in this Agreement.

Article 8 - Scope

The provisions of this Section shall apply to the following goods:

- a) Originating goods in Egypt imported into MERCOSUR Member States, as provided for in Annex I.1;
- b) Originating goods in MERCOSUR Member States imported into Egypt, as provided for in Annex I.2.

Article 9 - Classification of Goods

- 1. For the purpose of this Agreement, the Parties shall apply their respective customs classification systems for imported goods, which shall be based on the Harmonized System in its 2007 version or any subsequent amendment thereto approved by the Parties.
- 2. A Party may introduce new tariff splits, provided that the preferential conditions applied in the new tariff splits are not less than those applied originally.

Article 10 - Free movement of Egyptian goods among the Signatory Parties

The double payment of customs duties will be eliminated for Egyptian goods under the same schedule negotiated for MERCOSUR Signatory Parties among themselves.

Article 11 - Customs Duties on Imports and Charges Having Equivalent Effect

- 1. Customs duties and charges having equivalent effect imposed by each Party on imports of originating goods in the other Party listed in Annexes I.1 and I.2 shall be gradually eliminated as follows:
 - a) category A upon entry into force of this Agreement;
 - b) category B in four (4) equal stages, the first one taking place on the date of entry into force of this Agreement and the three (3) following stages at 12-month intervals;

- c) category C in eight (8) equal stages, the first one taking place on the date of entry into force of this Agreement and the seven (7) following stages at 12-month intervals:
- d) category D in ten (10) equal stages, the first one taking place on the date of entry into force of this Agreement and the nine (9) following stages at 12-month intervals; and,
- e) category E custom duties and charges having equivalent effect shall be eliminated as will be determined by the Joint Committee.
- 2. The applicable customs duties and charges having equivalent effect for imports between the Parties or Signatory Parties, to which the successive reductions set out in paragraph 1 are to be applied are the most-favored-nation (hereinafter referred to as "MFN") tariffs in force in January 2010. After the entry into force of this Agreement, any tariff reductions applied by the Parties or Signatory Parties on a MFN basis will serve as the new base for the tariff reductions provided for in this Agreement.
- 3. Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, no Party or Signatory Party shall adopt or increase any customs duties or charges having equivalent effect, on an originating good of the other party referred to in Article 8 of this Chapter.
- 4. Used goods, identified or not identified as such in the Harmonized System, shall not benefit from the trade liberalization scheduled in this Agreement.

<u>Article 12 – Quantitative Restrictions and Measures Having</u> <u>Equivalent Effect on Imports and Exports</u>

Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, no Party or Signatory Party may adopt or maintain any prohibition or restriction on the importation of any good of the other Party or Signatory Party or on the exportation or sale for export of any good destined for the territory of the other Signatory Parties, whether applied by quotas, licenses or other measures, except in accordance with Article XI of GATT 1994, including its interpretative notes. To this end, Article XI of GATT 1994 and its interpretative notes, or any equivalent provision of a successor agreement to which the Parties or Signatory Parties are party, are incorporated into and made a part of this Agreement.

Article 13 - National Treatment

On matters relating to taxes, fees or any other domestic charges/duties, the goods originating from the territory of any of the Parties or Signatory Parties shall receive in the territory of the other Party or Signatory Parties the same treatment as applied to the domestic goods, in accordance with Article III of GATT 1994, including its interpretative notes.

Article 14 - Rules of Origin

The goods listed in Annexes I.1 and I.2 shall meet the requirements of rules of origin, including the requirements and procedures for issuing a Certificate of Origin as provided in Chapter II in order to qualify for tariff preferences.

Article 15 - Technical Barriers to Trade

- 1. The Parties or Signatory Parties shall apply technical regulations, standards and conformity assessment procedures in accordance with the provisions of the WTO Agreement on Technical Barriers to Trade.
- 2. The Parties or Signatory Parties shall cooperate in the fields of technical regulations, standardization and conformity assessment procedures, with the aim of facilitating trade.

Article 16 - Sanitary and Phytosanitary Measures

- 1. The Parties or Signatory Parties shall apply sanitary and phytosanitary measures in accordance with the provisions of the WTO Agreement on the Application of Sanitary and Phytosanitary Measures.
- 2. The Parties or Signatory Parties shall cooperate in the fields of sanitary and phytosanitary measures, with the aim of facilitating trade.

<u>Article 17 – Safeguards</u>

- 1. The Parties or Signatory Parties may apply preferential safeguards in accordance with Chapter III.
- 2. The Parties or Signatory Parties shall apply safeguard measures in accordance with the provisions of Article XIX of GATT 1994 and the WTO Agreement on Safeguards.

Article 18 - Anti-dumping and Countervailing Measures

The rights and obligations of the Parties or Signatory Parties with respect to anti-dumping and countervailing measures shall be governed by their respective legislation, which shall be consistent with Article VI and XVI of GATT 1994, the Agreement on Implementation of Article VI of GATT 1994 and the WTO Agreement on Subsidies and Countervailing Measures.

Article 19 - Restrictions to Safeguard the Balance of Payments

1. Nothing in this Section shall be construed to prevent a Signatory Party from taking any measure for balance-of-payments purposes. The Signatory Parties shall apply restrictions to safeguard the balance of payments in accordance with the provisions of Articles XII and XIV of GATT 1994 and the WTO Understanding on Balance-of-Payments Provisions of GATT 1994.

- 2. The Signatory Party concerned shall promptly notify the other party of the measures applied pursuant to paragraph 1.
- 3. In applying temporary trade measures as described in paragraph 1, the Signatory Party in question shall accord treatment no less favorable to imports originating in the other Signatory Parties than to imports originating in any third country.

Article 20 - Customs Cooperation

The Parties or Signatory Parties shall cooperate in the field of customs matters, with the aim of facilitating trade. For this purpose they shall establish a dialogue and provide mutual assistance on customs matters.

Article 21 - Customs Valuation

As regards customs valuation, the Parties or Signatory Parties shall be bound by Article VII of GATT 1994 and the WTO Agreement on the Implementation of Article VII of GATT 1994.

Article 22 - General Exceptions

Nothing in this Agreement shall prevent any Party or Signatory Party from taking actions and adopting measures consistent with Articles XX and XXI of the GATT 1994.

SECTION III INVESTMENT AND SERVICES

Article 23 - Investment Promotion

- 1. The Parties recognize the importance of promoting cross-border investment flows and technology transfers as means for achieving economic growth and development. In order to increase investment flows, the Parties or Signatory Parties may cooperate through:
 - exchanging information, including potential sectors and investment opportunities, laws, regulations, and policies, so as to increase awareness on their investment environments;
 - b) encouraging and supporting investment promotion activities such as investment conferences, fairs, exhibitions and investment promotion missions;
 - c) discussing the possibility of negotiating bilateral investment promotion agreements with a view to furthering investment flows and technology transfer; and,
 - d) developing mechanisms for joint investments, in particular with small and medium enterprises.

2. The Parties recognize that the objective of investment promotion shall be in conformity with their domestic regulations.

Article 24 – Trade in Services

- 1. The Parties and Signatory Parties shall aim at achieving gradual liberalization and the opening of their markets for trade in services in accordance with the provisions of the WTO General Agreement on Trade in Services (hereinafter referred to as "GATS").
- 2. In their efforts to gradually deepen and broaden their economic relations, the Parties will consider, in the Joint Committee, the possible modalities for opening negotiations on market access on trade in services, on the basis of the GATS framework.

SECTION IV INSTITUTIONAL PROVISIONS

Article 25 - Joint Committee

- 1. A Joint Committee is hereby established, in which each Party shall be represented.
- 2. The Joint Committee shall be responsible for:
 - a) administering this Agreement and ensuring its proper implementation;
 - b) reviewing and monitoring the implementation of this Agreement, its Annexes and additional Protocols; and,
 - c) determining means of deepening cooperation between the Parties.

Article 26 - Procedures of the Joint Committee

- 1. The Joint Committee shall meet at an appropriate level whenever necessary and, in any case, at least once a year. Special meetings may also be convened at the request of either Party.
- 2. The Joint Committee shall hold its first meeting within sixty (60) days of the entry into force of this Agreement. It shall then establish its working procedures.
- 3. The Joint Committee shall be co-chaired by a representative appointed by Egypt and a representative appointed by MERCOSUR.
- 4. The Joint Committee shall take decisions. These decisions shall be taken by consensus. The Joint Committee may also make recommendations on matters related to this Agreement.
- 5. The decisions of the Joint Committee shall be binding.

- 6. In the case a decision taken by the Joint Committee is subject to the fulfillment of internal legal requirements by the Parties or Signatory Parties, it shall enter into force, if no later date is contained therein, on the date of the receipt of the last diplomatic note confirming that all internal procedures have been fulfilled.
- 7. The Joint Committee may decide to set up sub-committees and working groups as it considers necessary to assist it in accomplishing its responsibilities.

Article 27 - Functions of the Joint Committee

The Joint Committee shall have the following functions, *inter alia*:

- a) to ensure the proper functioning and implementation of this Agreement, its Annexes and additional Protocols, and continuation of the dialogue between the Parties:
- b) to consider examine, and approve any modifications and amendments to this Agreement, its Annexes and additional Protocols;
- c) to amend Annex IV.1 (Code of Conduct for Arbitrators of the Arbitration Tribunal) and Annex IV.2 (Rules of Procedure);
- d) to examine the process of trade liberalization established under this Agreement, its Annexes and additional Protocols, including inter alia studying the development of trade between the Parties, reviewing the categorization of goods in Article 11 of this Chapter, assessing the need for changes in the rules of origin, and recommending further steps for cooperation in the fields of trade in services, investment promotion and other areas not covered by the Agreement;
- e) to perform other functions that may arise from the implementation of the provisions of this Agreement, its Annexes and any additional Protocols;
- f) to establish mechanisms to encourage the active participation of the private sectors in areas covered by this Agreement between the Parties; and,
- g) to exchange opinions and make suggestions on any issue of mutual interest relating to areas covered by this Agreement, including future actions.

Article 28 - Language for Chapters III and IV

1. In the case of any investigation in Egypt, all notifications, written and oral submissions, shall be made in Arabic language, with their respective translations into English.

- 2. In the case of any investigation in MERCOSUR, all notifications, written and oral submissions, shall be made in Spanish (the Argentine Republic, the Republic of Paraguay and the Oriental Republic of Uruguay) or Portuguese (the Federative Republic of Brazil), with their respective translations into English.
- 3. Awards, decisions and notifications of the Arbitration Tribunal shall be in English.

CHAPTER II DEFINITION OF THE CONCEPT OF "ORIGINATING GOODS"

SECTION I GENERAL PROVISIONS

Article 1 - Definitions¹

For the purposes of this Chapter:

- a) "chapters", "headings" and "subheadings" mean the chapters, the headings and the subheadings (two, four and six digit codes respectively) used in the nomenclature which makes up the Harmonized System or HS;
- b) "CIF price" means the price paid to the exporter for the good when the goods pass the ship's rail at the port of importation. The exporter pays the costs of freight and insurance necessary to deliver the goods to the named port of destination;
- c) "value of materials" means the customs value at the time of importation of the nonoriginating materials used, or, if this is not known and cannot be ascertained, the first ascertainable price paid for the materials in the Signatory Party;
- d) "tariff classification" refers to the numeric code which corresponds to a good that is subject of international trade, in a nomenclature based on the Harmonized System;
- e) "customs value" means the value as determined in accordance with the WTO Agreement on implementation of Article VII of GATT 1994;
- f) "goods" means both materials and goods;
- g) "manufacture" means any kind of working or processing including assembly or specific operations;

¹ The present list of definitions is not exhaustive. New definitions will be included as and when the need arises.

- h) "material" means raw materials, intermediate materials, ingredients, parts, components, subassembly and/or goods that are physically incorporated into another good or are subject to a process in the production of another good;
- i) the "territory of Egypt" means the territory of the Arab Republic of Egypt, including its territorial sea, the exclusive economic zone and the continental shelf, in accordance with its laws in force, the 1982 United Nations Convention on the Law of the Sea and international law;
 - the "territory of the Member States of MERCOSUR" means the respective territories of the Member States of MERCOSUR, including their respective territorial seas the exclusive economic zones and continental shelves, in accordance with their respective laws in force, the 1982 United Nations Convention on the Law of the Sea and international law;
- j) "value of originating materials" means the value of such materials on the basis of ex- works value;
- "ex-works price" means the price paid for the good ex-works to the manufacturer in Egypt or in a Member State of MERCOSUR in whose undertaking the last working or processing is carried out, provided the price includes the value of all the materials used, minus any internal taxes which are, or may be, repaid when the good obtained is exported;
- 1) "consignment" means goods which are either sent simultaneously from one exporter to one consignee or covered by a single transport document covering their shipment from the exporter to the consignee or, in the absence of such a document, by a single invoice; and,
- m) "Competent Authority" refers to the government authorities listed below or their delegated entities for issuing Certificate of Origin under the legislation of each Signatory Party, responsible for the implementation of the provisions of this Chapter:

(i) in MERCOSUR:

 Ministerio de Industria - Secretaría de Industria y Comercio - Dirección Nacional de Política Comercial Externa / Ministry of Industry – Secretariat of Industry and Trade – National Directorate of External Trade Policy Julio A. Roca N° 651- 6th Floor - Office 26 - Buenos Aires, Argentina Fax: (5411) 4349 3809 Ministério do Desenvolvimiento, Indústria e Comércio Exterior - Secretaria de Comércio Exterior (SECEX) - Departamento de Negociações Internacionais (DEINT) / Ministry of Development, Industry and Foreign Trade – Secretariat of Foreign Trade (SECEX) – Department of International Negotiations (DEINT)
 Esplanada dos Ministérios, Block J, 7th Floor – Brasília, Brasil

Fax: (5561) 2027 7385

- Ministerio de Industria y Comercio - Dirección General de Comercio Exterior - Dirección de Operaciones de Comercio Exterior / Ministry of Industry and Trade - Directorate General of Foreign Trade - Directorate of Foreign Trade Operations

Av. Mariscal López Nº 3333 – Asunción, Paraguay

Fax: (59521) 616 3084

- Ministerio de Economía y Finanzas Asesoría de Política Comercial / Ministry of Economy and Finance Trade Policy Bureau
 Colonia 1206 2nd. Floor Montevideo, Uruguay
 Fax: (5982) 902 03 54 int 15
- (ii) in Egypt:
- General Organization for Export And Import Control Nearby Cargo Village at Cairo Airport – Cairo, Egypt Tel. No. (00202) 5758195 / (00202) 5785877 / (00202) 5756933 http://www.goeic.gov.eg/en

or their successors.

SECTION II CRITERIA FOR ORIGINATING GOODS

Article 2 – General Requirements

- 1. For the purpose of implementing this Agreement, the following goods shall be considered as originating in a Signatory Party:
 - a) the goods wholly produced or obtained in the territory of the Signatory Party as defined in Article 4 of this Chapter; and,
 - b) the goods not wholly produced in the territory of the Signatory Party, provided that the said goods are eligible under Article 3 or Article 5 of this Chapter.
- 2. The provisions of paragraph 1 above exclude used or second hand goods.

Article 3 – Cumulation of Origin

Goods originating in any of the Signatory Parties, when used as an input for a finished good in the other Signatory Parties, shall be considered as originating in the latter.

Article 4 – Wholly Obtained Goods

- 1. The following shall be considered as wholly produced or obtained in the territory of any of the Signatory Parties:
 - a) mineral goods extracted from the soil or subsoil of any of the Signatory Parties;
 - b) plants² and plant goods grown, harvested, picked or gathered there;
 - c) live animals³ born and raised there, including by aquaculture;
 - d) goods from live animals as in (c) above;
 - e) animals and goods thereof obtained by hunting, trapping, collecting, fishing and capturing there;
 - f) waste and scrap resulting from utilizing, consuming or manufacturing operations conducted in the territory of any of the Signatory Parties, provided they are fit only for the recovery of raw materials;
 - g) goods obtained from the seabed and subsoil beyond the limits of national jurisdiction provided that the Signatory Party has the rights of exploitation;
 - h) goods of sea fishing obtained, only by their vessels according to paragraph 2, under a specific quota or other fishing rights allocated to a Signatory Party by international agreements;
 - i) goods made aboard their factory ships exclusively from goods referred to in g) and h) above; and,
 - j) goods produced in any of the Signatory Parties exclusively from the goods specified in subparagraphs a) to i) above.
- 2. The terms "their vessels" and "their factory ships" in subparagraphs 1.h) and 1.i) shall apply only to vessels and factory ships:
 - a) which are flagged and registered or recorded in a Signatory Party; and,

² "Plant" refers to all plant life, including forestry goods, fruits, flowers, vegetables, trees, sea weeds and fungi.

³ "Animals" referred to in paragraph (c), (d) and (e) covers all animal life, including mammals, birds, fish, crustaceans, molluscs and reptiles.

b) which are owned by a natural person with domicile in that Signatory Party or by a commercial company, established and registered in that Signatory Party in accordance with its laws and performing its activities in conformity with the laws and regulations of the said Signatory Party, and which have at least 75 % of the crew composed of nationals of that Signatory Party, provided that the master and officers are nationals of that Signatory Party.

<u>Article 5 – Sufficiently Worked or Processed Goods</u>

- 1. The following goods shall be considered as originating in the territory of any Signatory Party:
 - a) Goods that are not subject to specific rules of origin, when:
 - (i) Classified in a different heading (four digits level) of the Harmonized System from those in which all non-originating materials used in its the manufacture are classified.
 - (ii) In the case that subparagraph (i) cannot be satisfied, the value of all non-originating materials used in its manufacture does not exceed 45% of the ex-works price of the final good. In the case of Paraguay, the referred value of non-originating materials should not exceed 55% of the ex-works price.
 - b) Goods that satisfy the specific rules of origin established in Annex II.4. The specific rules of origin shall prevail over the rule mentioned in subparagraph 1.a) above. The Signatory Parties could establish future specific rules of origin, in exceptional and justified situations, as well revise the specific rules of origin established in Annex II.4.
- 2. For the purposes of determining the CIF value of non-originating materials for countries without a coastline, the port of destination of the imported non-originating materials shall be the first seaport or inland waterway port located in any of the other Signatory Parties.
- 3. Pursuant to subparagraph 1.a), a good will be considered to have undergone a change in tariff classification as provided for in subparagraph 1.a)(i) if the value of all non-originating materials that are used in the production of the good and that do not undergo the applicable change in tariff classification does not exceed 10% of the ex-works value of the good.

This provision shall not be applicable to goods classified under Chapters 50 to 63 of the Harmonized System.

- 4. Paragraph 3 shall apply only to trade between:
 - a) Uruguay and Egypt; and,
 - b) Paraguay and Egypt.

5. Paragraphs 1 to 4 are subject to the provisions of the Article 6 of this Chapter.

<u>Article 6 – Insufficient Working or Processing Operations</u>

The following operations shall be considered as insufficient working or processing to confer the status of originating to a good, whether or not the requirements of Article 5 of this Chapter are satisfied:

- a) preserving operations to ensure that the goods remain in good condition during transport and storage such as aeration, drying, refrigeration, immersion in salty or sulphured water or in water added with other substances, extraction of damaged parts and similar operations;
- b) dilution in water or in any other substance which does not substantially alter the good's characteristics;
- c) simple operations such as removal of dust, sifting, screening, sorting, classifying, grading, matching, washing, painting, husking, stoning of seeds, slicing and cutting;
- d) simple change of package and breaking-up and assembly of packages;
- e) simple packing in bottles, cans, flasks, bags, cases, boxes, fixing on cards or boards and all other simple packaging operations;
- f) affixing or printing marks, labels, logos and other like distinguishing signs on goods or their packaging;
- g) simple cleaning, including removal of oxide, oil, paint or other coverings;
- h) simple assembly of parts to constitute a complete article or disassembly of goods into parts, in accordance with General Rule 2a of the Harmonized System;
- i) slaughter of animals;
- j) simple mixing of goods, provided that the characteristics of the obtained good are not essentially different from those of the mixed goods;
- k) oil application;
- 1) ironing or pressing of textiles;
- m) simple polishing operations;
- n) partial or total bleaching, polishing, and glazing of cereals and rice;

- o) operations to color sugar or to form sugar lumps;
- p) a combination of two or more of the above operations.

Article 7 – Accessories, Spare Parts and Tools

Accessories, spare parts and tools dispatched with a piece of equipment, machine, apparatus or vehicle, which are part of the normal equipment and which are included in the price thereof, or which are not separately invoiced, shall be considered as one with the piece of equipment, machine, apparatus or vehicle in question.

<u>Article 8 – Fungible Materials</u>

- 1. For the purpose of establishing if a good is originating when in its manufacture are utilized originating and non-originating fungible materials, mixed or physically combined, the origin of such materials can be determined by any of the inventory management methods applicable in the Signatory Parties.
- 2. Where considerable cost or material difficulties arise in keeping separate stocks of originating and non-originating materials, which are identical and interchangeable, the Competent Authorities may, at the written request of those concerned, authorize the so-called "accounting segregation" method to be used for managing such stocks.
- 3. This method must be able to ensure that the number of goods obtained which could be considered as "originating" is the same as that which would have been obtained if there had been physical segregation of the stocks.

Article 9 - Sets

- 1. Sets, as defined in General Rule 3 of the Harmonized System, shall be considered as originating when all component goods are originating.
- 2. Nevertheless, when a set is composed of both originating and non-originating goods, the set as a whole shall be considered as originating, provided that the CIF value of the non-originating goods utilized in the composition of the set does not exceed 15% per cent of the ex-works price of the set.

Article 10 - Unit of Qualification

1. The unit of qualification for the application of the provisions of this Chapter shall be the particular good which is considered as the basic unit when determining classification using the nomenclature of the Harmonized System.

It follows that:

- a) when a good composed of a group or assembly of articles is classified under the terms of the Harmonized System in a single heading, the whole constitutes the unit of qualification;
- b) when a consignment consists of a number of identical goods classified under the same heading of the Harmonized System, each good must be taken individually when applying the provisions of this Protocol.
- 2. Where, under General Rule 5 of the Harmonized System, packaging is included with the good for classification purposes, it shall be included for the purposes of determining origin.

Article 11 - Neutral Elements or Indirect Materials

- 1. "Neutral elements" or "indirect materials" means goods used in the production, testing or inspection of goods but not physically incorporated into the goods, or goods used in the maintenance of buildings or the operation of equipment associated with the production of goods, including:
 - a) energy and fuel;
 - b) plant and equipment;
 - c) tools, dies, machines and moulds;
 - d) parts and materials used in the maintenance of plant, equipment and buildings;
 - e) goods which do not enter into the final composition of the good;
 - f) gloves, glasses, footwear, clothing, safety equipment, and supplies;
 - g) equipment, devices, and supplies used for testing or inspecting the goods;
 - h) lubricants, greases, compounding materials and other materials used to operate equipment and buildings.
- 2. An indirect material shall be considered as originating without regards to where it is produced. Its value shall be the cost registered in the accounting records of the producer of the exported good.

Article 12 - Containers and Packaging Materials for Shipment

The containers and packaging materials for shipment, used exclusively for transporting goods shall not be taken into account when determining the origin of the goods.

Article 13 - Intermediate Materials

The producer of a good may consider as intermediate material any material produced in a Signatory Party used in the production of a good, provided that such intermediate material qualifies as originating in accordance with the provisions of this Chapter. The intermediate material will be considered as originating once incorporated into the final good if it meets the rules of this Chapter.

Article 14 - Direct Transport, Transit and Trans-Shipment

In order for the originating goods to benefit from the preferential treatment provided for under this Agreement, they shall be transported directly between the exporting Signatory Party and the importing Signatory Party. The goods are transported directly provided that:

- a) they are transported through the territory of one or more Signatory Parties;
- b) they are in transit through one or more territories of third countries, with or without trans-shipment or temporary warehousing in such territories, under the surveillance of the Customs Authorities therein, provided that:
 - (i) the transit entry is justified for geographical reasons or by considerations related exclusively to transport requirements;
 - (ii) they are not intended for trade, consumption, use or employment in the country of transit;
 - (iii) they do not undergo operations other than unloading, reloading or any operation designed to preserve them in good condition.

Article 15 – Operations Involving Third Operators

Operations involving third operators shall be allowed provided that, in addition to the compliance with the provisions mentioned paragraphs a) and b) of Article 14 of this Chapter, the commercial invoice issued by the third operator and the Certificate of Origin issued by the Competent Authorities of the exporting Signatory Party are submitted. In these cases, the Customs Authorities shall require that in the Certificate of Origin is included the number and date of the commercial invoice issued by the third operator and his name, country and address. If this data is not available when the Certificate of Origin is issued, the commercial invoice attached to the importation clearance document shall contain a declaration attesting that the commercial invoice corresponds to the Certificate of Origin submitted. The Declaration shall contain the number and the date of issuance of the corresponding Certificate of Origin and be signed by the operator. In the event of non-compliance of this requirement, the Customs Authorities shall not accept the Certificate of Origin and shall not grant the tariff preferences established in this Agreement.

Article 16 – Goods Stored in Customs Warehouses

The originating goods that are stored under the control of a custom office in a customs warehouse of a Signatory Party with the corresponding Certificate of Origin, shall only undergo operations designed to ensure their trading, preservation in good condition, breaking-up of packages, or other operations, provided that their tariff classification and their originating status are not changed. Such goods shall be sent totally or partially to any Signatory Party. Should the neccesary national legislation on the matter be enacted, the Competent Authorities may issue replacement Certificates of Origin for all or some of these goods, within the period of validity of the Certificate of Origin submitted when the goods enter the customs warehouse.

Article 17 - Principle of Territoriality

- 1. Except as provided for in Articles 2 and 3 of this Chapter, the conditions for acquiring originating status set out in Section II of this Chapter must be fulfilled without interruption in a Signatory Party.
- 2. Except as provided for in Articles 2 and 3 of this Chapter, where originating goods exported from a Signatory Party to a third country return to the former, they must be considered as non-originating, unless it can be demonstrated to the satisfaction of the Customs Authorities that:
 - a) the returning goods are the same as those exported; and,
 - b) they have not undergone any operation beyond those necessary to preserve them in good condition while in that third country or while being exported.

Article 18 - Exhibitions

- 1. Originating goods, sent for exhibition in third country and sold after the exhibition for importation in a Signatory Party shall benefit, on importation, from the provisions of this Agreement, provided it is shown to the satisfaction of the Customs Authorities that:
 - a) an exporter has consigned these goods from the Signatory Party to the third country in which the exhibition is held and has exhibited them there;
 - b) the goods have been sold or otherwise disposed of by that exporter to a person in the Signatory Party;
 - c) the goods have been consigned during the exhibition or immediately thereafter in the state in which they were sent for exhibition; and,
 - d) the goods have not been used for any purpose other than demonstration at the exhibition.

- 2. A proof of origin must be issued or made out in accordance with the provisions of Section III and submitted to the Customs Authorities of the importing Signatory Party according to the normal procedure. The name and address of the exhibition must be indicated thereon. Where necessary, additional documentary evidence of the conditions under which they have been exhibited may be required.
- 3. The provisions of this Article shall apply to any trade, industrial, agricultural or crafts exhibition, fair or similar public show or display which is not organized for private purposes in shops or business premises with a view to the sale of foreign goods, and during which the goods remain under customs control.

SECTION III PROOF OF ORIGIN

Article 19 - Origin Certification

- 1. The Certificate of Origin is the document that certifies that the goods fulfill the origin requirements as set out in this Chapter, so that they can benefit from the preferential tariff treatment as foreseen in this Agreement. The said Certificate of Origin is valid for one single importing operation concerning one or more goods and its original version shall be included in the documentation to be submitted to the Customs Authorities of the importing Signatory Party.
- 2. The Certificate of Origin mentioned in the preceding paragraph shall be issued in the form agreed upon by the Parties in Annex II.1 and upon a declaration by the exporter of the goods and the respective commercial invoice.
- 3. In all cases, the number of the commercial invoice shall be indicated in the box reserved for this purpose in the Certificate of Origin.

Article 20 - Issuance of Certificates of Origin

1. For the issuance of a Certificate of Origin, the exporter of the good shall present the corresponding commercial invoice and a request containing a declaration by the exporter, certifying that the goods fulfill the origin criteria of this Chapter, as well as the necessary documents supporting such a declaration.

The said declaration form is attached in Annex II.2 of this Chapter.

- 2. The description of the good in the origin declaration, which certifies the fulfillment of the origin requirements set out in this Chapter, shall correspond to the respective tariff classification, as well as with the description of the goods in the commercial invoice and in the Certificate of Origin.
- 3. The Certificate of Origin shall be valid for a period of one hundred and eighty (180) days from its date of issuance.

- 4. The Certificate of Origin shall be signed and issued by the Competent Authorities. The Competent Authority will be responsible for all the information of the issued Certificates of Origin.
- 5. The issuing Competent Authorities and the certifying offices or institutions shall keep the documents supporting the Certificate of Origin for a period of at least three (3) years, from its date of issuance.
- 6. Certificates of Origin shall be issued in English.
- 7. Certificates of Origin shall be issued before the goods have been exported.

<u>Article 21 – Certificates of Origin Issued Retrospectively</u>

- 1. Notwithstanding Article 20.7 of this Chapter, Certificates of Origin may exceptionally be issued after the exportation of the goods to which it relates if:
 - a) it was not issued at the time of exportation because of special circumstances; or,
 - b) it is demonstrated to the satisfaction of the Competent Authorities that a Certificate of Origin was issued but was not accepted at importation for technical reasons⁴.
- 2. For the implementation of paragraph 1, the exporter must indicate in his application the place and date of exportation of the goods to which the Certificate of Origin relates, and state the reasons for his request.
- 3. The Competent Authorities, as referred to Article 20.4 of this Chapter, may issue a Certificate of Origin retrospectively only after verifying that the information supplied in the exporter's application corresponds to that in the corresponding file.
- 4. Certificates of Origin issued retrospectively must be endorsed with the following phrase in English:

"ISSUED RETROSPECTIVELY"

5. The endorsement referred to in paragraph 4 shall be inserted in Box 11 of the Certificate of Origin.

Article 22 - Issuance of a Duplicate Certificate of Origin

- 1. In the event of theft, loss or destruction of a Certificate of Origin, the exporter may apply to the issuing Competent Authorities for a duplicate made out on the basis of the export documents in their possession.
- 2. The duplicate issued in this way must be endorsed with the following word in English:

-

⁴ See Explanatory Note in Annex II.3

"DUPLICATE"

- 3. The endorsement referred to in paragraph 2 shall be inserted in Box 11 of the duplicate Certificate of Origin.
- 4. The duplicate, which must bear the date of issuance of the original Certificate of Origin, shall take effect as from that date.

SECTION IV CONTROL AND VERIFICATION OF CERTIFICATES OF ORIGIN

Article 23

- 1. Without prejudice to the presentation of a Certificate of Origin under the conditions laid down in the provisions of this Chapter, the Competent Authority of the importing Signatory Party may, in case of reasonable doubt, request, to the Competent Authority of the exporting Signatory Party, further information in order to verify the authenticity of the Certificate of Origin and the veracity of the information contained in it. This shall not preclude the application of the respective national legislation's regarding illicit customs matters.
- 2. Compliance with requests for further information, in accordance with this Article, should be limited to records and documents available in the Competent Authorities. Copies of the documentation required for the issuance of the Certificate of Origin may also be requested. This Article does not limit exchanges of information in accordance with the Customs Cooperation Agreements.
- 3. The reasons to doubt the authenticity of the Certificate of Origin or the veracity of their data must be expressed in a clear and concrete way. For this purpose, the consultations shall be carried out by the Competent Authority designated by each Signatory Party.
- 4. The Customs Authorities of the importing Signatory Party shall not suspend import operations. However, they may require a guarantee in any of its modalities to preserve fiscal interests, as a precondition to complete import operations.
- 5. The amount of the guarantee, whenever it is required, may not exceed the value of customs duties applicable to the import of goods from third countries, in accordance with the legislations and customs regulations of the importing Signatory Party.

Article 24

The Competent Authorities of the exporting Signatory Party shall provide the information requested under Article 23 of this Chapter within sixty (60) days from the date of the receipt of the request for information.

The information obtained under the provisions of this Section shall be treated as confidential and shall be used for the purpose of clarifying the matter investigated by the Competent Authority of the importing Signatory Party, as well as during the investigation and prosecution.

Article 26

In cases where the information requested under Article 23 of this Chapter is not provided within the period specified in Article 24 of this Chapter or it is insufficient to clarify the doubts about the origin of the good, the Competent Authority of the importing Signatory Party may initiate an investigation on the matter within ninety (90) days from the date of the request for information. If the information is satisfactory, the Customs Authorities must release the importer from the guarantee referred to in Article 23 of this Chapter within thirty (30) days after the provision of the information.

Article 27

- 1. Once the investigation is initiated, the Customs Authority of the importing Signatory Party shall not suspend import operations relating to identical goods from the same exporter or producer. However, the Customs Authority may require a guarantee in any of its modalities, to preserve fiscal interests, as a precondition to complete import operations.
- 2. The amount of the guarantee, whenever it is required, will be established under the terms of Article 23 of this Chapter.

Article 28

The Competent Authority of the importing Signatory Party shall immediately notify the importer and the Competent Authority of the exporting Signatory Party of the initiation of the investigation of origin, in accordance with the procedures laid down in Article 29 of this Chapter.

Article 29

During the investigation process, the Competent Authority of the importing Signatory Party may:

a) request, through the Competent Authority of the exporting Signatory Party, new information and copies of documents in the possession of the entity issuing the Certificate of Origin under investigation according to Article 23 of this Chapter, necessary to verify the authenticity of the Certificate of Origin and the veracity of the information contained therein. The request shall indicate the number and date of issuance of the Certificate of Origin under investigation;

- b) in the case of verification of the regional or local value content, the producer or exporter shall provide access to any information or documentation necessary to establish the import CIF value of the non-originating goods used in the production of the good under investigation;
- c) in the case of verification of the characteristics of some production processes required as specific origin requirements, the producer or exporter shall provide access to any information and documentation to confirm such processes;
- d) send to the Competent Authority of the exporting Signatory Party a written questionnaire for the exporter or producer, indicating the Certificate of Origin under investigation;
- e) request that the Competent Authorities of the exporting Signatory Party facilitate visits to the premises of the producer, aimed at examining the production processes as well as the equipment and tools used in the manufacture of the good under investigation;
- f) the Competent Authorities of the exporting Signatory Party will accompany the authorities of the importing Signatory Party during the visit, which may include the participation of experts who will act as observers. The experts must be identified in advance, must be neutral and must not have interests in the investigation. The exporting Signatory Party may deny the participation of such experts when they represent the interests of companies or institutions involved in the investigation;
- g) after the visit is concluded, the participants must sign a minute stating that the visit was carried out in accordance to the requirements of this Chapter. The minute shall also contain the following information: date and local where the visit took place; identification of the Certificates of Origin which motivated the investigation; identification of the goods under investigation; identification of the participants with an indication of the body or entity to which they belong; and a report of the visit. The exporting Signatory Party may request the postponement of a verification visit by a period not exceeding thirty (30) days;
- h) to carry out other procedures agreed upon by the Signatory Parties involved in the case under investigation.

The Competent Authorities of the exporting Signatory Party shall provide the requested information and documentation according to Article 29 a) to d) of this Chapter, within sixty (60) days from the date of the receipt of the request.

Regarding the proceedings referred to in Article 29 of this Chapter, the Competent Authority of the importing Signatory Party may request to the Competent Authority of the exporting Signatory Party the participation or advice of experts concerning the matter under investigation.

Article 32

In the cases in which the information or documentation requested to the Competent Authority of the exporting Signatory Party is not submitted within the stipulated deadline, or if it is insufficient for determining the authenticity or veracity of the Certificate of Origin under investigation, or still, if the producers do not agree to the visit, the Competent Authorities of the importing Signatory Party may consider that the goods under investigation do not fulfill the origin requirements, and may, as a result, deny preferential tariff treatment to the goods mentioned in the Certificate of Origin under investigation according to Article 27 of this Chapter, and thus conclude such investigation.

Article 33

- 1. The Competent Authorities of the importing Signatory Party shall make efforts to conclude the investigation within one hundred and twenty (120) days from the date of the receipt of the information requested in accordance with Article 29 of this Chapter.
- 2. If new investigative actions or the presentation of further information is considered necessary, the Competent Authorities of the importing Signatory Party shall communicate the fact to the Competent Authorities of the exporting Signatory Party. The deadline for the execution of these new actions or for the presentation of further information shall not exceed ninety (90) days, from the date of the receipt of the information referred to in Article 29 of this Chapter.
- 3. If the investigation is not concluded within ninety (90) days from its initiation, the importer shall be released from the payment of the guarantee, regardless of the continuation of the investigation.

Article 34

- 1. The Competent Authorities of the importing Signatory Party shall inform the importers and the Competent Authorities of the exporting Signatory Party of the conclusion of the investigation process, as well as the reasons that led to its decision.
- 2. The Competent Authority of the importing Signatory Party shall grant the Competent Authority of the exporting Signatory Party access to the investigation files, in accordance with its legislation.

During the investigation process, occasional modifications in the manufacturing conditions made by the companies under investigation shall be taken into account.

Article 36

Once the investigation is finished with the qualification of the origin of the goods and the validity of the origin criterion contained in the Certificate of Origin, the importer shall be released from the guarantees required in Articles 23 and 27 of this Chapter, within thirty (30) days.

Article 37

- 1. Once the investigation establishes the non-qualification of the origin criterion of the goods contained in the Certificate of Origin, duties shall be charged as if the goods were imported from third countries and the sanctions established in this Agreement and/or the ones foreseen in the legislation in force in each Signatory Party shall be applied.
- 2. In such a case, the Competent Authorities of the importing Signatory Party may deny preferential tariff treatment to new imports relating to identical goods from the same producer, until it is clearly demonstrated that the manufacturing conditions were modified so as to fulfill the provisions of this Chapter.
- 3. Once the Competent Authorities of the exporting Signatory Party have sent the information demonstrating that the manufacturing conditions were modified, the Competent Authorities of the importing Signatory Party shall have forty five (45) days, from the date of the receipt of the said information to communicate its decision on the matter, or a maximum of ninety (90) days if a new verification visit to the producer's premises, according to paragraph e) of Article 29 of this Chapter, is deemed necessary.
- 4. If the Competent Authorities of the importing and the exporting Signatory Party fail to agree on the demonstration of the modification on the manufacturing conditions, they may make use of the procedure established as in Article 40 of this Chapter.

Article 38

1. A Signatory Party may request another Signatory Party to investigate the origin of a good imported by the latter from another Signatory Party, whenever there are well-founded reasons for suspecting that the goods of the first Signatory Party undergo competition from imported goods with preferential tariff treatment, which do not fulfill the provisions of this Chapter.

2. For such purposes, the Competent Authorities of the Signatory Party requesting the investigation shall bring to the Competent Authorities of the importing Signatory Party the relevant information within forty-five (45) days, from the date of the request. Once this information is received, the importing Signatory Party may initiate the proceedings established in this Chapter, giving notice of this to the Signatory Party that requested the initiation of the investigation.

Article 39

Procedures for control and verification of origin under this Chapter may be applied even to goods released for consumption.

Article 40

Within sixty (60) days from the receipt of the communication, under Article 34 or in the third paragraph of Article 37 of this Chapter, if the measure is considered inconsistent, the exporting Signatory Party, may submit a query to the Joint Committee of the Agreement stating the technical and legal reasons which indicate that the measure taken by the Competent Authorities of the importing Signatory Party does not conform to this Chapter, and/or seek a formal statement to determine whether the good in question complies with the provisions of this Chapter.

Article 41

The deadlines laid down in this Chapter shall be calculated based on consecutive days beginning on the day following the facts or events to which they relate.

SECTION V REVIEW AND AMENDMENT

Article 42

- 1. The Joint Committee will review the implementation of this Chapter and, if appropriate, shall propose to the Parties amendments to it.
- 2. Such review may be initiated jointly with the negotiation to deepen or extend tariff preferences of this Agreement, or at any time, at the request of a Party, to address specific difficulties faced by exporters with the existing origin criteria or any other item of tariff classification.

CHAPTER III PREFERENTIAL SAFEGUARDS

SECTION I DEFINITIONS

Article 1

For the purposes of this Chapter:

- 1. "Competent investigating authority" means:
 - a) in the case of Egypt, the Trade Agreements Sector of the Ministry of Trade and Industry or its successor in Egypt;
 - b) in the case of MERCOSUR, Ministerio de Industria y Turismo or its successor in Argentina; Secretaria de Comércio Exterior do Ministério do Desenvolvimento, Indústria e Comércio Exterior or its successor in Brazil; Ministerio de Industria y Comercio or its successor in Paraguay; and Asesoría de Política Comercial del Ministerio de Economía y Finanzas or its successor in Uruguay.
- 2. "Serious injury" shall be understood to mean the significant overall impairment in the position of a domestic industry.
- 3. "Threat of serious injury" shall be understood to mean the serious injury that is clearly imminent, based on facts and not merely on allegation, conjecture or remote possibility.
- 4. "Domestic industry" shall be understood to mean the producers as a whole of the like or directly competitive goods, operating in the territory of the Party or Signatory Parties concerned, or when it is not possible, those whose collective output of the like or directly competitive goods constitutes a major proportion of the total production of such goods.

SECTION II CONDITIONS FOR APPLICATION OF PREFERENTIAL SAFEGUARD MEASURES

Article 2

- 1. Preferential safeguard measures may be applied under the conditions established in this Chapter, when the imports of a good under preferential terms have increased in such quantities, absolute or relative to domestic production, and under such conditions as to cause or threaten to cause serious injury to the domestic industry of the importing Party or Signatory Parties concerned.
- 2. Preferential safeguard measure shall be applied only to the extent necessary to prevent or remedy serious injury.

Preferential safeguard measures shall not be applied after four (4) years from the date of the finalization of the tariff elimination or reduction program applicable to the goods unless otherwise agreed by the Parties. After this period, the Joint Committee shall evaluate whether or not to continue the preferential safeguard measures mechanism referred to in this Chapter.

Article 4

- 1. MERCOSUR may adopt preferential safeguard measures:
 - a) as a sole entity, as far as all requirements to determine the existence of serious injury or threat thereof, being caused by the imports of goods as a result of the reduction or elimination of a customs duty provided for in this Agreement, have been fulfilled on the basis of conditions applied to MERCOSUR as a whole; or
 - b) on behalf of one or more of its Member States, in which case the requirements for the determination of the existence of serious injury or threat thereof, being caused by the imports as a result of the reduction or elimination of a customs duty provided for in this Agreement, shall be based on the conditions prevailing in the affected Member State(s) and the measure shall be limited to that Member State(s).
- 2. Egypt may apply preferential safeguard measures to the imports from MERCOSUR or MERCOSUR Member States where such serious injury or threat thereof is being caused by the imports of a good as a result of the reduction or elimination of a customs duty provided for in this Agreement.
- 3. The Parties may apply preferential safeguard measures only to the imports from a Party or Signatory Party where such serious injury or threat thereof is being caused by the imports of a good under preferential terms from such Party or Signatory Party.

Article 5

Preferential safeguard measures adopted under this Chapter shall consist of temporary suspension or reduction of the tariff preferences established in this Agreement for the good subject to the measure. Any increase in the rate of customs duty on the good subject to preferential safeguard measures shall not exceed the applied MFN customs duty or base duty, whichever being the lowest.

- 1. The Party that applies a preferential safeguard measure should establish an import quota within which the good concerned would benefit from the agreed preference established in this Agreement. This import quota shall not be lower than the average imports of the good concerned during the representative period over which serious injury was determined. A higher level of quota may be applied if it is duly justified.
- 2. In case a quota is not established, the preferential safeguard measure shall only consist of a reduction of the preference, which shall not be greater than 50% of the tariff preference established in this Agreement.

Article 7

- 1. The total period of application of a preferential safeguard measure shall not exceed two (2) years.
- 2. In exceptional circumstances the Joint Committee will authorize the application of a preferential safeguard measure for a good that has already been subject to a preferential safeguard measure for an additional period of two (2) years or less.
- 3. Upon termination of the preferential safeguard measure, the preference shall be the one that would be applied to the good in the absence of the measure, according to the tariff elimination schedule.

Article 8

The investigation to determine serious injury or threat thereof as a result of increased imports of a good under preferential terms shall take into consideration all relevant factors of an objective and quantifiable nature having a bearing on the situation of the domestic industry affected, and in particular, the following:

- a) the amount and rate of the increase in preferential imports of the good concerned in absolute and relative terms;
- b) the share of the internal market taken by increased preferential imports;
- c) the consequent impact on the domestic industry of the like or directly competitive goods, based on factors, including: changes in the level of sales, production, productivity, capacity utilisation, profits and losses and employment; and,
- d) the existence of a causal link between the increased imports of the good under preferential terms and the serious injury or threat thereof to the domestic industry.

SECTION III INVESTIGATION AND TRANSPARENCY PROCEDURES

Article 9

- 1. Each Party or Signatory Party shall establish or maintain published procedures for the application of preferential safeguard measures, in compliance with the provisions established in this Chapter. Investigations shall include reasonable public notice to all interested parties and public hearings or other appropriate means in which importers, exporters and other interested parties could present evidence and their views, including the opportunity to respond to the presentations of other parties. The competent investigating authorities shall publish a report setting forth their findings and reasoned conclusions reached on all pertinent issues of fact and law.
- 2. Investigating authorities shall take due account of any difficulties experienced by interested parties in submitting information in compliance with Article 28 of Chapter I.

Article 10

- 1. Any information which is by nature confidential or which is provided on a confidential basis shall, upon good cause being shown, be treated as such by the competent investigating authorities. Such information shall not be disclosed without permission of the party submitting it. Parties providing confidential information may be requested to furnish non-confidential summaries thereof or, if such parties indicate that such information may not be summarised, the reasons why a summary cannot be provided.
- 2. If the competent investigating authorities find that a request for confidentiality is not warranted and if the party concerned is either unwilling to make the information public or to authorize its disclosure in generalized or summary form, the authorities may disregard such information unless it can be demonstrated to their satisfaction from appropriate sources that the information is correct.

Article 11

The period between the date of publication of the decision to initiate the investigation and the publication of the final decision shall not exceed eight (8) months. No preferential safeguard measure will be applied in case the timeline is not observed by the competent investigating authorities.

SECTION IV NOTIFICATIONS AND CONSULTATIONS

Article 12

- 1. The importing Party or Signatory Party shall notify the exporting Party or Signatory Party of:
 - a) the decision to initiate the investigation under this Chapter;
 - b) the decision to apply or not a preferential safeguard measure.

Article 13

A Party proposing to apply a preferential safeguard measure shall provide adequate opportunity for prior consultations to the exporting Party or Signatory Party concerned. With this objective, the Party shall notify the other Party or Signatory Party when finding evidence of serious injury or threat thereof caused by increased preferential imports that would lead to a decision to apply a preferential safeguard measure. The notification shall be provided no less than thirty (30) days before the measure comes into force. The notifications shall include:

- a) information concerning the existence of serious injury or threat of serious injury to the domestic industry caused by the increase in preferential imports;
- b) complete description of the imported good subject to the measure;
- c) description of the measure proposed; and,
- d) the date of entry into force of the measure and its duration.

Article 14

A Party may not apply a preferential safeguard measure under this Chapter without having afforded an opportunity for consultations, the objective of which shall be the exchange of opinions, aimed at reaching a mutually satisfactory solution. If no satisfactory solution is reached within 30 days of the notification under Article 13 of this Chapter, the Party may apply the preferential safeguard measure.

SECTION V LEVEL OF CONCESSIONS

Article 15

- 1. A Party or Signatory Party proposing to apply a preferential safeguard measure shall endeavour to maintain a substantially equivalent level of concessions to that existing under this Agreement between it and the Party or Signatory Party which would be affected by such a measure. To achieve this objective, the Parties or Signatory Parties concerned may agree on any adequate means of trade compensation for the adverse effects of the measure on trade.
- 2. If no agreement is reached within 30 days in the consultations set forth under Article 14 of this Chapter, the Parties or Signatory Parties concerned shall be free to, no later than ninety (90) days after the measure has been applied, suspend the application of substantially equivalent concessions or other obligations under the Agreement, to the trade of the Party or Signatory Party applying the measure.

CHAPTER IV DISPUTE SETTLEMENT

SECTION I APPLICATION OF THE CHAPTER

Article 1

The provisions of this Chapter shall apply with respect to any disputes concerning the interpretation, application of and/or non-compliance with the provisions of the Free Trade Agreement between MERCOSUR and the Arab Republic of Egypt and the decisions of the Joint Committee taken pursuant to this Agreement.

Article 2

- 1. Any dispute regarding matters arising under the provisions of this Agreement and the decisions of the Joint Committee taken pursuant to this Agreement, on issues regulated by the WTO Agreement, may be settled in accordance with this Chapter or with the Understanding on Rules and Procedures Governing the Settlement of Disputes of the WTO (hereinafter referred to as "the DSU") at the complaining party's election.
- 2. Where a dispute settlement proceeding has been initiated with regard to a particular measure, either under this Chapter or under the DSU, a dispute settlement proceeding regarding the same measure shall not be initiated in the other forum.
- 3. For the purposes of this Article, a dispute settlement proceeding shall be considered to have been initiated under this Chapter when the complaining party requests consultations under Article 4 of this Chapter.

- 4. For the purposes of this Article, a dispute settlement proceeding shall be considered to have been initiated under the DSU when the complaining party requests consultations under Article 4 of the DSU.
- 5. Notwithstanding the above, disputes that may arise in connection with anti-dumping, countervailing measures and global safeguards shall be settled exclusively in accordance with the DSU.
- 6. Notwithstanding the above, disputes regarding matters for which the Agreement only makes reference to the rights and obligations of the parties under the WTO Agreement, shall be settled exclusively in accordance with the DSU.

- 1. For the purpose of this Chapter, the "Contracting Parties" are MERCOSUR and Egypt. The "Signatory Parties" are the Argentine Republic, the Federative Republic of Brazil, the Republic of Paraguay and the Oriental Republic of Uruguay, Member States of MERCOSUR, and Egypt.
- 2. MERCOSUR or its Member States may initiate a dispute settlement proceeding against Egypt as:
 - a) MERCOSUR as a Contracting Party;
 - b) one MERCOSUR Member State as a Signatory Party; or
 - c) two or more Member States of MERCOSUR as Signatory Parties, in which event, they shall present jointly only one case on the same subject matter.
- 3. Egypt may initiate a dispute settlement proceeding either against MERCOSUR as a Contracting Party or one of its Member States as a Signatory Party.
- 4. For the purpose of this Chapter, both Contracting Parties as well as one or more Member States of MERCOSUR and Egypt may be parties to a dispute and shall hereinafter be referred to as "party" or "parties".

SECTION II CONSULTATIONS

Article 4

The parties shall endeavor to resolve any disputes regarding the interpretation, application of and/or non-compliance with the provisions referred to in Article 1 of this Chapter by entering into consultations in good faith with the aim of reaching a prompt, equitable and mutually agreed solution.

Any request for consultations shall be submitted in writing to the other party and shall specify the reasons for the request, including the identification of the measures at issue and the provisions concerned.

Article 6

- 1. The party to which the request for consultations is made shall reply within fifteen (15) days of its receipt.
- 2. Consultations, and in particular all information disclosed and positions taken by the parties during these proceedings, shall be confidential, and without prejudice to the rights of either party in any further proceedings.
- 3. Consultations shall be held within forty five (45) days of the date of receipt of the request on the territory of the party complained against, unless the parties agree otherwise. Consultations shall be deemed concluded within seventy five (75) days of the date of receipt of the request, unless both parties agree to continue consultations.
- 4. In cases of urgency, including those regarding perishable goods, the periods set forth in paragraph 3 shall be reduced by half.

SECTION III JOINT COMMITTEE INTERVENTION

Article 7

- 1. In the event of both parties being unable to reach a mutually agreeable solution through consultations, each of the parties may refer any dispute to the Joint Committee established under Section IV of Chapter I.
- 2. Any request to the Joint Committee shall be submitted in writing and shall give the reasons for the request, including the identification of the measures at issue and the provisions concerned.

Article 8

- 1. The Joint Committee shall meet within forty five (45) days after all the Parties have received the request referred to in the previous Article. Should it not be possible to hold the meeting of the Joint Committee within this period of time, the parties may extend this term by consensus.
- 2. The Joint Committee shall meet, unless the Parties agree otherwise, on the territory of the party complained against.

3. The Joint Committee's intervention, in particular all information disclosed and positions taken by the parties during this procedure, shall be confidential, and without prejudice to the rights of either party in any further proceedings.

Article 9

- 1. The Joint Committee may, after having heard the arguments of the parties, settle the dispute by means of recommendations.
- 2. The Joint Committee shall make any recommendations it deems fit within thirty (30) days as from the date of its first meeting. Should the Joint Committee fail to reach a mutually satisfactory solution within this term, unless the parties agree otherwise, the stage provided for in this Section shall immediately be considered ended.
- 3. The Joint Committee may seek the opinion of experts when necessary. In such cases, the Committee shall issue its recommendations within forty five (45) days as from the date of its first meeting.

SECTION IV MEDIATION

Article 10

- 1. If consultations fail to produce a mutually agreed solution and the Joint Committee is unable to issue recommendations, the parties may, by consensus, seek recourse to a mediator. Any request for mediation shall be made in writing and state any measure which has been the subject of consultations as well as the mutually agreed terms of reference for the mediation.
- 2. Unless the parties agree on a mediator within ten (10) days of the date of receipt of the request for mediation, the mediator shall be selected by lot from the list of non-national arbitrators referred to in Article 13.1 of this Chapter.
- 3. The mediator will convene a meeting with the parties no later than thirty (30) days after being selected. The mediator shall receive the submissions of each party no later than fifteen (15) days before the meeting and may request additional information from the parties. Any information obtained in this manner must be disclosed to each of the parties and submitted for their comments.
- 4. The mediator shall notify an opinion no later than sixty (60) days after having been selected. The mediator's opinion may include a recommendation on how to resolve the dispute consistent with the Agreement. The mediator's opinion is non-binding.
- 5. The proceedings involving mediation, in particular the mediator's opinion and all information disclosed and positions taken by the parties during these proceedings, shall be confidential, and without prejudice to the rights of either party in any further proceedings, unless the parties agree otherwise.

- 6. If the parties so agree, procedures for mediation may continue while the arbitration procedure proceeds.
- 7. The time limits referred to in paragraphs 3 and 4 may be amended, should circumstances so demand, with the agreement of both parties. Any amendment shall be notified in writing to the mediator.
- 8. In the event that mediation produces a mutually acceptable solution to the dispute, both parties shall submit a notification in writing to the mediator.

SECTION V ARBITRATION PROCEDURE

Article 11

- 1. Where the parties have failed to resolve the dispute by recourse to consultations as provided for in Section II, or through the intervention of the Joint Committee as provided for in Section III, the complaining party may request the initiation of an arbitration procedure.
- 2. The request for arbitration shall be made in writing to the party complained against and the Joint Committee and shall specify the reasons for the request, including the identification of the measures at issue; the provisions concerned; and, whether the procedures provided for in Sections II and III were followed.

Article 12

The parties acknowledge as binding, ipso facto and with no need for a special agreement, the jurisdiction of the Arbitration Tribunal set up in each case to hear and solve the disputes referred to in this Chapter.

Article 13

1. At the first meeting of the Joint Committee, the Parties shall propose a list of 10 individuals to serve as arbitrators, two of whom shall not be nationals of either Party.

The Joint Committee will ensure that the lists are always maintained at this level.

- 2. Arbitrators shall have specialized knowledge or experience of law and international trade. They shall be independent, serve in their individual capacities and not take instructions from any organization or government, or be affiliated with the government of any of the Signatory Parties.
- 3. Non-national arbitrators shall be jurists.
- 4. As from the time of the request of the complaining party for arbitration, the Parties will not be in a position to amend their list of proposed arbitrators.

5. After accepting their appointment and before beginning their work, the arbitrators shall sign the Statement of Agreement contained in Annex IV.1 (Code of Conduct for Arbitrators of the Arbitration Tribunal).

Article 14

- 1. The Arbitration Tribunal shall be composed of three (3) arbitrators appointed as follows:
 - a) within fifteen (15) days of the request for arbitration referred to in Article 11 of this Chapter, each party shall appoint an arbitrator and an alternate selected amongst the individuals that party proposed in the list referred to in Article 13.1 of this Chapter. If any of the parties fails to appoint an arbitrator and an alternate within the prescribed period, at the request of the other party, the representatives of the parties shall draw by lot an arbitrator and an alternate amongst the individuals proposed under Article 13.1 of this Chapter by the party having failed to appoint an arbitrator and an alternate;
 - b) within fifteen (15) days of the request for arbitration referred to in Article 11 of this Chapter, the parties shall jointly appoint the third arbitrator and an alternate selected amongst the non-national individuals proposed in the lists referred to in Article 13.1 of this Chapter to chair the Arbitration Tribunal. If the parties fail to appoint an arbitrator and an alternate within the prescribed period, at the request of any of the parties, the representatives of the parties shall draw by lot an arbitrator and an alternate amongst the non-national individuals proposed under Article 13.1 of this Chapter.
- 2. The appointments provided for in this Article shall be notified to the parties and to the Joint Committee.
- 3. An alternate arbitrator shall replace the titular arbitrator in case of the arbitrator's inability to be part of the Arbitration Tribunal, whether at the time of its establishment or in the course of the procedure.
- 4. The date of establishment of the Arbitration Tribunal shall be the date as of when the Statements of Agreement have been signed by the three arbitrators.

Article 15

- 1. The venue for the arbitration proceedings shall be decided by mutual agreement between the parties. If the parties fail to reach an agreement within ten (10) days of the establishment of the Arbitration Tribunal, the latter shall meet on the territory of the party complained against.
- 2. The Arbitration Tribunal shall apply the Rules of Procedure, which include the rights to hearings and the exchange of written submissions as well as deadlines and timetables for ensuring expediency, as set out in Annex IV.2. The Rules of Procedure shall be modified or amended subject to the agreement of the parties thereto.

The Arbitration Tribunal shall issue its award in the light of the information provided and the statements made by the parties.

Article 17

The Arbitration Tribunal shall decide on the dispute based on the provisions of the Agreement, Joint Committee decisions taken pursuant to the Agreement and the applicable principles and provisions of international law.

Article 18

- 1. The Arbitration Tribunal shall render its written award, normally, within ninety (90) days as from the date of its establishment and in no case more than one hundred and twenty (120) days as from that date.
- 2. The Arbitration Tribunal shall make every effort to take any decision by consensus. Where, nevertheless, a decision cannot be arrived at by consensus, the matter at issue shall be decided by majority vote. The vote of the Arbitration Tribunal shall be confidential and no dissenting opinion shall be expressed.

Article 19

Arbitration awards are unappealable and binding on the parties as from receipt of the respective notification and will be final in respect of them.

SECTION VI COMPLIANCE

Article 20

1. Awards shall be enforced within the period of time established by the Arbitration Tribunal for compliance with the award. That period of time shall be final unless one of the parties justifies in writing the need for a different period of time. The Arbitration Tribunal shall render its decision within a period of 15 days from the date of the written request. The Arbitration Tribunal shall decide on the basis of the written submissions of the parties and shall convene a meeting for this purpose only under special circumstances.

Where the Arbitration Tribunal has not established in the award a period of time for compliance, the award shall be enforced within one hundred and eighty (180) days, unless the parties agree otherwise.

- 2. Before the end of the period of time established in accordance with the preceding paragraph, the party complained against shall notify the other party of the implementing measures that it has adopted or intends to adopt in order to comply with the award of the Arbitration Tribunal.
- 3. In the event that there is disagreement between the parties concerning the consistency of the measure adopted to comply with the award, the complaining party may seek recourse to the original Arbitration Tribunal to rule on the matter, by submitting a written request to the other party and the Joint Committee explaining why the measure is inconsistent with the award. The Arbitration Tribunal will issue its decision within forty five (45) days of the date of its reestablishment.
- 4. The complaining party shall be entitled, upon notification to the party complained against, to suspend the application of benefits granted under this Agreement at a level equivalent to the adverse economic impact caused by the measure found to violate this Agreement if:
 - a) the Arbitration Tribunal decides under paragraph 3 that the implementing measures adopted are not in compliance with the Arbitration award; or,
 - b) the party complained against fails to notify in due time the measures referred to in paragraph 2.
- 5. The suspension of benefits shall be temporary and shall be applied only until the measure found to be in violation of the Agreement is withdrawn or amended so as to bring it into conformity with this Agreement or until the parties have agreed to settle the dispute.
- 6. If the party complained against considers that the level of suspension is not equivalent to the adverse economic impact caused by the measure found to violate the Agreement, it may make a written request within thirty (30) days from the date of suspension for the reconvening of the original Arbitration Tribunal. The Joint Committee and the parties shall be informed of the Arbitration Tribunal's decision on the level of the suspension of benefits within thirty (30) days of the date of the request for its establishment.
- 7. The party complained against shall submit to the complaining party a notification of the implementing measures it has adopted to comply with the award of the Arbitration Tribunal and of its request to end the suspension of benefits applied by the complaining party.

The party complained against shall reply to any request from the complaining party for consultations on the implementing measures notified within ten (10) days of receipt of the request.

If the parties do not reach an agreement on the compatibility of the notified implementing measures with this Agreement within thirty (30) days of receipt of the request for consultations, either of the parties may request that the original Arbitration Tribunal decide on the matter within sixty (60) days of the notification of the implementing measures. The decision shall be issued within forty five (45) days of the written request for its re-establishment. If the Arbitration Tribunal decides that the implementing measure is not in conformity with this Agreement, it will determine whether the complaining party can resume the suspension of benefits at the same or a different level.

Article 21

In the event of the original Arbitration Tribunal, or some of its arbitrators, being unable to reconvene under Article 20 of this Chapter, the procedures set out in Article 14 of this Chapter shall apply. In such case, the Arbitration Tribunal may decide to extend the time limits set forth under Article 20 of this Chapter by no longer than fifteen (15) days.

SECTION VII GENERAL PROVISIONS

Article 22

- 1. The expenses of the Arbitration Tribunal shall be borne in equal parts by the parties. The Joint Committee shall agree on an understanding on reference costs at its first meeting.
- 2. Each party shall bear its own expenses and legal costs.

Article 23

All the time limits laid down in this Chapter shall be counted in calendar days from the day following the act or fact to which they refer. If the last day for delivery of a document falls on a Friday, Saturday, or Sunday, the document may be delivered on the following Monday.

Article 24

All documentation, recommendations and proceedings linked to the procedure established in this Chapter, as well as the sessions of the Arbitration Tribunal, shall be confidential, except for the awards of the Arbitration Tribunal. Nevertheless, the award will not include any information submitted by the parties to the Arbitration Tribunal which any of them deem confidential.

Article 25

At any time during the proceeding the complaining party may abandon its claims or the parties may reach an agreement. In either case, the dispute shall be terminated and the Arbitration Tribunal notified.

No later than five (5) years after the entry into force of this Agreement, the Joint Committee should review its implementation.

CHAPTER V FINAL PROVISIONS

Article 1 - Evolutionary Clause

Where a Party considers that it would be useful in the interests of the economies of the Parties to develop and deepen the relations established by the Agreement by extending them to fields not covered thereby, it shall submit a reasoned request to the Joint Committee. The Joint Committee shall examine such a request and, where appropriate, make recommendations by consensus, particularly with a view to opening negotiations.

Article 2 - Annexes

Annexes to this Agreement are an integral part of it.

Article 3 - Amendments

- 1. Amendments to this Agreement, which are decided upon by the Joint Committee, shall be submitted to the Signatory Parties for ratification and shall enter into force after confirmation that all internal legal procedures required by each Signatory Party for their entry into force have been completed.
- 2. Amendments or modifications to the present Agreement shall be adopted by means of additional Protocols thereto.

Article 4 - Application of the Agreement

From the perspective of the importing Signatory Party, nothing in this Agreement shall require that the Signatory Party apply this Agreement to territories not covered by its customs law.

Article 5 - Entry into Force

This Agreement shall enter into force thirty (30) days after the date of the notification to the Depositary of each of the instruments of ratification of the last Signatory Party.

Article 6 - Depositary

The Government of the Republic of Paraguay shall act as Depositary of this Agreement and shall notify all Signatory Parties that have signed or acceded to this Agreement of the deposit of any instrument of ratification, acceptance or accession, the entry into force of this Agreement, of its expiry or of any withdrawal there from.

Article 7 - Accession

- 1. If MERCOSUR incorporates one or more new Member States, it shall notify the other Party and afford adequate opportunity for negotiations concerning the participation of the Member State(s) concerned in this Agreement.
- 2. The incorporation into this Agreement of new Member States to MERCOSUR, as Signatory Parties, shall be formalized through an Accession Protocol reflecting the results of the negotiations held pursuant to paragraph 1.

Article 8 - Withdrawal

- 1. This Agreement shall be valid indefinitely.
- 2. Each Party may withdraw from this Agreement by means of a written notification to the Depositary. The withdrawal shall take effect six (6) months after the date on which the notification is received through diplomatic channels by the Depositary unless a different period is agreed by the Parties.
- 3. If Egypt withdraws from the Agreement, it shall expire at the end of the notice period. If all Member States of MERCOSUR withdraw from the Agreement, it shall expire at the end of the latest notice period.
- 4. In case any of the Member States of MERCOSUR withdraws from MERCOSUR, it shall notify the Depositary through diplomatic channels. The Depositary shall notify all Parties of the deposit. The present Agreement will no longer be valid for that Member State of MERCOSUR. The withdrawal shall take effect six (6) months after the date on which the notification of its withdrawal from MERCOSUR is received by the Depositary unless the Parties agree on a different period.

Done in the city of San Juan, Argentina, on this second day of August 2010, in two originals in English. The texts translated into the Arabic, Spanish, and Portuguese languages shall be exchanged through diplomatic channels within ninety (90) days. In case of doubt or divergence of interpretation, however, the English text shall prevail.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the undersigned being duly authorized thereto by their respective Governments have signed this Agreement.

For the Argentine Republic	For the Arab Republic of Egyp
Héctor Timerman	Rachid Mohamed Rachid
For the Federative Republic of Brazil	
Celso Amorim	
For the Republic of Paraguay	
Héctor Lacognata	
For the Oriental Republic of Uruguay	
Luis Leonardo Almagro Lemes	

ANNEX I.1 ORIGINATING GOODS IN EGYPT IMPORTED INTO MERCOSUR

ANNEX I.2 ORIGINATING GOODS IN MERCOSUR IMPORTED INTO EGYPT

ANNEX II.1 MERCOSUR - EGYPT CERTIFICATE OF ORIGIN

1. Exporter (name, address, country)		Certificate #			
2. Importer (name, address, country)		Stamp, address and name of the Certifying Authority			
3. Port of shipment (Optional)		4. Country of Origin		5. Country of Destination	
		6. Con Numb		/ /	
7. Tariff item number 11. Remarks	8. Goods description		9. Origin criteria	10. Gross Mass (kg) or other measure (litres, m³, etc.)	

CERTIFICATION OF ORIGIN

12. Statement by the exporter:	13. Certification Authority certifies that:
I, the undersigned, declare that the goods described above meet the conditions required for the issuance of this Certificate of Origin.	This is to certify the authenticity of the precedent statement in accordance with the applicable regulations.
Place and Date:	Place and Date:
Stamp and signature	Stamp and Signature

(Back)

INSTRUCTIONS ON HOW TO FILL OUT AN EGYPT-MERCOSUR CERTIFICATE OF ORIGIN

General

The Certificate of Origin must be completed in accordance with these instructions together with the relevant provisions set forth in the Agreement.

Boxes "Certificate Number" and "Stamp, address and name of the Certifying Authority"

These boxes are for the use of the issuing authority, which shall fill in the Certificate number and sign it.

• Box No. 2 - "Importer"

This box shall bear the details of the importer of the goods in the country of final destination. If, for commercial reasons it is not possible to designate the importer, the exporter shall complete the box with "Unknown".

Box No. 3 - "Port of shipment (Optional)"

This box shall indicate the last port of shipment from any Member State of MERCOSUR or from Egypt.

• Box No. 5 - "Country of Destination"

This box shall bear the name of the country which is the final destination of the goods.

• Box No.7 - "Tariff Item Number"

This box shall be filled in with the HS Code in force under this Agreement.

• Box No. 8 - "Goods Description"

This box shall bear a detailed description of all the goods covered by the Certificate.

• Box No. 9 - "Origin Criteria"

The manner in which the goods obtained their originating status according to the Agreement shall be detailed as follows:

- "A" for goods that were wholly obtained in the territory of the Signatory Parties, as specified in Article 4 of Chapter II.
- "B" for goods that were not wholly obtained, but their non-originating materials were sufficiently processed and those materials underwent a change of heading (4 digits).

- "C" for goods that were not wholly obtained, but their non-originating materials were sufficiently processed and the value of those non-originating materials do not exceed the rates specified in Article 5 of Chapter II.
- "D" for goods that were not wholly obtained, but they meet the specific origin criteria set forth in Annex II.4.

Box No. 10 - "Gross Mass"

In the field reserved for gross weight or other quantity - the gross weight or any other units of quantity of the goods shall be detailed.

• Box No. 11 - "Remarks"

This box shall bear observations made by the country of exportation, for example, the mention "DUPLICATE", "ISSUED RETROSPECTIVELY" or the mention that there is a third operator involved in the commercial transaction.

PRINTING INSTRUCTIONS

- 1. Each form shall measure 210 x 297 mm; a tolerance of up to minus 5 mm or plus 8 mm in the length may be allowed. The paper used must be white, sized for writing, not containing mechanical pulp and weighing not less than 25 g/m2. It shall have a green printed guilloche pattern background making any falsification by mechanical or chemical means apparent to the eye.
- 2. The Competent Authorities may reserve the right to print the forms themselves or may have them printed by approved printers. In the latter case, each form must include a reference to such approval. Each form must bear the name and address of the printer or a mark by which the printer can be identified. It shall also bear a serial number, either printed or not, by which it can be identified.

ANNEX II.2 DECLARATION BY THE EXPORTER

I, the undersigned, exporter of the goods described overleaf,

DECLARE that the goods meet the conditions required for the issuance of the attached Certificate of Origin;

SPECIFY	as follows the circumstances which have enabled these goods to meet the above conditions:
SUBMIT	the following supporting documents ⁴¹ :
UNDERTAKE	to submit, at the request of the appropriate authorities, any supporting evidence which these authorities may require for the purpose of issuing the attached Certificate of Origin, and undertake, if required, to agree to any inspection of my accounts and to any check on the processes of manufacture of the above goods, carried out by the said authorities;
REQUEST	the issuance of the attached Certificate of Origin for these goods.
	(Place and date)
	(Signature)

¹ For example: import documents, Certificates of Origin, invoices, manufacturer's declarations, etc., referring to the goods used in manufacture

ANNEX II.3 EXPLANATORY NOTE ARTICLE 21 – CERTIFICATES OF ORIGIN ISSUED RETROSPECTIVELY – "TECHNICAL REASONS"

A Certificate of Origin may be rejected for 'technical reasons' because it was not made out in the prescribed manner. These are the cases which may give rise to subsequent presentation of a retrospectively-endorsed Certificate of Origin and they include, by way of example, the following:

- the Certificate of Origin has been made out on a form other than the prescribed one (e.g. differs significantly from the model in size or colour, no serial number, not printed in the officially-prescribed language),
- one of the mandatory boxes (e.g. Box 7 on the Certificate of Origin) has not been filled in,
- the Certificate of Origin has not been stamped and signed (i.e. in Box 12),
- the Certificate of Origin is endorsed by a non-authorised authority,
- the stamp used is a new one which has not yet been notified,
- the Certificate of Origin presented is a copy or photocopy rather than the original,
- the entry in Box 4 refers to a third country that does not belong to the Agreement.

Action to be taken

The document should be marked 'Document not accepted', stating the reason(s), and then returned to the importer in order to enable him to get a new document issued retrospectively. The customs authorities, however, may keep a photocopy of the rejected document for the purposes of post-clearance verification or if they have grounds for suspecting fraud.

ANNEX II.4 SPECIFIC RULES OF ORIGIN

	working or processing required to be carried out on non-originating materials in order for the manufactured products to obtain originating status
HS	Specific Rule of Origin
0401.10	Manufacture in which all the materials of Chapter 4 used are wholly obtained
0401.20	Manufacture in which all the materials of Chapter 4 used are wholly obtained
0401.30	Manufacture in which all the materials of Chapter 4 used are wholly obtained
0402.10	Manufacture in which all the materials of Chapter 4 used are wholly obtained
0402.21	Manufacture in which all the materials of Chapter 4 used are wholly obtained
0402.29	Manufacture in which all the materials of Chapter 4 used are wholly obtained
0403.10	Manufacture in which all the materials of Chapter 4 used are wholly obtained and all the fruit juice of heading 2009 (except that of pineapple, lime or grapefruit) used is originating.
0403.90	Manufacture in which all the materials of chapter 4 used are wholly obtained
0404.10	Manufacture in which all the materials of chapter 4 used are wholly obtained
0404.90	Manufacture in which all the materials of chapter 4 used are wholly obtained
0405.10	Manufacture in which all the materials of chapter 4 used are wholly obtained
0406.10	Manufacture in which all the materials of chapter 4 used are wholly obtained
0406.20	Manufacture in which all the materials of chapter 4 used are wholly obtained
0406.30	Manufacture in which all the materials of chapter 4 used are wholly obtained
0406.40	Manufacture in which all the materials of chapter 4 used are wholly obtained
0406.90	Manufacture in which all the materials of chapter 4 used are wholly obtained
0408.11	Manufacture in which all the materials of Chapter 4 used are wholly obtained
0408.91	Manufacture in which all the materials of Chapter 4 used are wholly obtained
1302.13	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
1507.10	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
1507.90	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
1508.10	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
1508.90	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
1511.10	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
1511.90	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.

Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.

1602.50	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
1702.11	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
1702.40	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
2002.10	Manufacture in which all the materials used are wholly obtained
2002.90	Manufacture in which all the materials used are wholly obtained
2004.10	Manufacture in which all the materials used are wholly obtained
2004.90	Manufacture in which all the materials used are wholly obtained
2005.20	Manufacture in which all the materials used are wholly obtained
2005.40	Manufacture in which all the materials used are wholly obtained
2005.91	Manufacture in which all the materials used are wholly obtained
2005.99	Manufacture in which all the materials used are wholly obtained
2006.00	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
2007.91	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
2007.99	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
2008.70	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
2101.11	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
2102.10	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
2102.20	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
2106.10	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
2106.90	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
2204.10	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.

2204.21	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
2204.29	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
2207.10	Manufacture: - from materials of any heading, except heading 2207 or 2208, and - in which all the grapes or materials derived from grapes used are wholly obtained.
2207.20	Manufacture: - from materials of any heading, except heading 2207 or 2208, and - in which all the grapes or materials derived from grapes used are wholly obtained.
2208.30	Manufacture: - from materials of any heading, except heading 2207 or 2208, and - in which all the grapes or materials derived from grapes used are wholly obtained.
2208.60	Manufacture: - from materials of any heading, except heading 2207 or 2208, and - in which all the grapes or materials derived from grapes used are wholly obtained.
2208.70	Manufacture: - from materials of any heading, except heading 2207 or 2208, and - in which all the grapes or materials derived from grapes used are wholly obtained.
2309.90	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
2523.10	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
2523.29	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Chapter 28	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, or manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product, and shall be obtained by a production that involves a molecular modification resulting from a substantial transformation and create a new chemical identity.
Chapter 29	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, or manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product, and shall be obtained by a production that involves a molecular modification resulting from a substantial transformation and create a new chemical identity.
3006.10	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
3808.50	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
3808.91	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
3808.92	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
3808.93	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
3808.99	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product

3904.10	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
4808.10	Manufacture from materials of any heading, except that of the product
4817.10	Manufacture: - from materials of any heading, except that of the product, and - in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
4818.30	Manufacture from paper-making materials of Chapter 47
4819.10	Manufacture: - from materials of any heading, except that of the product, and - in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
4819.20	Manufacture: - from materials of any heading, except that of the product, and - in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
4819.30	Manufacture: - from materials of any heading, except that of the product, and - in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
4820.20	Manufacture: - from materials of any heading, except that of the product, and - in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
4820.40	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
4820.90	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
4821.10	Manufacture from materials of any heading, except that of the product
4821.90	Manufacture from materials of any heading, except that of the product
4823.90	Manufacture from paper-making materials of Chapter 47
4911.10	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
5102.11	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
5105.29	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
5111.11	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
5111.19	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
5111.20	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
5111.30	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.

Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of

Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.

5208.13	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
5208.19	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
5208.21	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
5208.22	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
5208.23	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
5208.29	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
5208.31	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
5208.32	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
5208.33	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
5208.39	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
5208.41	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
5208.42	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
5208.43	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
5208.49	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
5208.51	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of

Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of

5209.59	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
5210.11	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
5210.19	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
5210.21	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
5210.29	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
5210.31	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
5210.32	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
5210.39	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
5210.41	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
5210.49	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
5210.51	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
5210.59	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
5211.11	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
5211.12	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
5211.19	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
5211.20	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.

5211.31	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
5211.32	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
5211.39	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
5211.41	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
5211.42	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
5211.43	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
5211.49	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
5211.51	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
5211.52	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
5211.59	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
5212.11	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
5212.12	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
5212.13	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
5212.14	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
5212.15	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
5212.21	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
	1

Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.

Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.

Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.

Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.

Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.

5513.21	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
5513.23	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
5513.29	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
5513.31	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
5513.39	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
5513.41	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
5513.49	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
5514.11	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
5514.12	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
5514.19	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
5514.21	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
5514.22	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
5514.23	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
5514.29	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
5514.30	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
5514.41	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.

Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.

5516.21	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
5516.22	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
5516.23	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
5516.24	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
5516.31	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
5516.32	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
5516.33	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
5516.34	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
5516.41	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
5516.42	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
5516.43	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
5516.44	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
5516.91	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
5516.92	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
5516.93	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
5516.94	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.

Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.

5702.10	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
5702.20	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
5702.31	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
5702.32	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
5702.39	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
5702.41	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
5702.42	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
5702.49	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
5702.50	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
5702.91	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
5702.92	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
5702.99	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
5703.10	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
5703.20	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
5703.30	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
5703.90	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.

Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.

5801.90	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
5802.11	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
5802.19	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
5802.20	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
5802.30	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
5803.00	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
5804.10	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
5804.21	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
5804.29	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
5804.30	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
5805.00	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
5806.10	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
5806.20	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
5806.31	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
5806.32	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
5806.39	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.

Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.

5903.90	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
5911.32	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
6001.10	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
6001.21	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
6001.22	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
6001.29	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
6001.91	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
6001.92	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
6001.99	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
6002.40	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
6002.90	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
6003.10	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
6003.20	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
6003.30	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
6003.40	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
6003.90	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.

6004.10 6004.90	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product. Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of
6004.90	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of
	all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
6005.21	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
6005.22	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
6005.23	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
6005.24	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
6005.31	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
6005.32	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
6005.33	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
6005.34	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
6005.41	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
6005.42	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
6005.43	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
6005.44	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
6005.90	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
6006.10	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.

6006.21	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
6006.22	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
6006.23	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
6006.24	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
6006.31	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
6006.32	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
6006.33	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
6006.34	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
6006.41	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
6006.42	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
6006.43	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
6006.44	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
6006.90	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
6105.20	In the case of Argentina, Brazil and Egypt: Manufacture from yarn. In the case of Paraguay and Uruguay: Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
6106.90	In the case of Argentina, Brazil and Egypt: Manufacture from yarn. In the case of Paraguay and Uruguay: Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
6107.19	In the case of Argentina, Brazil and Egypt: Manufacture from yarn. In the case of Paraguay and Uruguay: Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
6109.90	In the case of Argentina, Brazil and Egypt: Manufacture from yarn.

	In the case of Paraguay and Uruguay: Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating
	materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
6112.12	In the case of Argentina, Brazil and Egypt: Manufacture from yarn.
	In the case of Paraguay and Uruguay: Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating
	materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
6115.10	In the case of Argentina, Brazil and Egypt: Manufacture from yarn.
	In the case of Paraguay and Uruguay: Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
	In the case of Argentina, Brazil and Egypt: Manufacture from yarn.
6115.96	In the case of Paraguay and Uruguay: Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
	In the case of Argentina, Brazil and Egypt: Manufacture from yarn.
6203.11	In the case of Paraguay and Uruguay: Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
	In the case of Argentina, Brazil and Egypt: Manufacture from yarn.
6203.43	In the case of Paraguay and Uruguay: Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
	In the case of Argentina, Brazil and Egypt: Manufacture from yarn.
6204.43	In the case of Paraguay and Uruguay: Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating
	materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
	In the case of Argentina, Brazil and Egypt: Manufacture from yarn.
6205.20	In the case of Paraguay and Uruguay: Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
	In the case of Argentina, Brazil and Egypt: Manufacture from yarn.
6205.30	In the case of Paraguay and Uruguay: Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
	In the case of Argentina, Brazil and Egypt: Manufacture from yarn.
6205.90	In the case of Paraguay and Uruguay: Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
	In the case of Argentina, Brazil and Egypt: Manufacture from yarn.
6206.40	In the case of Paraguay and Uruguay: Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
	In the case of Argentina, Brazil and Egypt: Manufacture from yarn.
6211.11	In the case of Paraguay and Uruguay: Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
6402.19	Manufacture from materials of any heading, except from components of subheading 6406.10, provided that the total value of non-originating materials does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
6402.20	Manufacture from materials of any heading, except from components of subheading 6406.10, provided that the total value of non-originating materials does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
6402.91	Manufacture from materials of any heading, except from components of subheading 6406.10, provided that the total value of non-originating materials does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
6402.99	Manufacture from materials of any heading, except from components of subheading 6406.10, provided that the total value of non-originating materials does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
6403.51	Manufacture from materials of any heading, except from components of subheading 6406.10, provided that the total value of non-originating materials does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.

6403.59	Manufacture from materials of any heading, except from components of subheading 6406.10, provided that the total value of non-originating materials does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
6403.91	Manufacture from materials of any heading, except from components of subheading 6406.10, provided that the total value of non-originating materials does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
6403.99	Manufacture from materials of any heading, except from components of subheading 6406.10, provided that the total value of non-originating materials does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
6404.11	Manufacture from materials of any heading, except from components of subheading 6406.10, provided that the total value of non-originating materials does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
6404.19	Manufacture from materials of any heading, except from components of subheading 6406.10, provided that the total value of non-originating materials does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
7017.90	Manufacture from materials of any heading, except that of the product
7208.10	Manufacture from materials of headings 7206 or 7207, molten and moulded or casted in the Signatory Parties.
7208.25	Manufacture from materials of headings 7206 or 7207, molten and moulded or casted in the Signatory Parties.
7208.26	Manufacture from materials of headings 7206 or 7207, molten and moulded or casted in the Signatory Parties.
7208.27	Manufacture from materials of headings 7206 or 7207, molten and moulded or casted in the Signatory Parties.
7208.36	Manufacture from materials of headings 7206 or 7207, molten and moulded or casted in the Signatory Parties.
7208.37	Manufacture from materials of headings 7206 or 7207, molten and moulded or casted in the Signatory Parties.
7208.38	Manufacture from materials of headings 7206 or 7207, molten and moulded or casted in the Signatory Parties.
7208.39	Manufacture from materials of headings 7206 or 7207, molten and moulded or casted in the Signatory Parties.
7208.40	Manufacture from materials of headings 7206 or 7207, molten and moulded or casted in the Signatory Parties.
7208.51	Manufacture from materials of headings 7206 or 7207, molten and moulded or casted in the Signatory Parties.
7208.52	Manufacture from materials of headings 7206 or 7207, molten and moulded or casted in the Signatory Parties.
7208.53	Manufacture from materials of headings 7206 or 7207, molten and moulded or casted in the Signatory Parties.
7208.54	Manufacture from materials of headings 7206 or 7207, molten and moulded or casted in the Signatory Parties.
7208.90	Manufacture from materials of headings 7206 or 7207, molten and moulded or casted in the Signatory Parties.
7209.16	Manufacture from materials of headings 7206 or 7207, molten and moulded or casted in the Signatory Parties.
7209.17	Manufacture from materials of headings 7206 or 7207, molten and moulded or casted in the Signatory Parties.
7209.18	Manufacture from materials of headings 7206 or 7207, molten and moulded or casted in the Signatory Parties.

Manufacture from materials of headings 7206 or 7207, molten and moulded or casted in the Signatory Parties.
Manufacture from materials of headings 7206 or 7207, molten and moulded or casted in the Signatory Parties.
Manufacture from materials of headings 7206 or 7207, molten and moulded or casted in the Signatory Parties.
Manufacture from materials of headings 7206 or 7207, molten and moulded or casted in the Signatory Parties.
Manufacture from materials of headings 7206 or 7207, molten and moulded or casted in the Signatory Parties.
Manufacture from materials of headings 7206 or 7207, molten and moulded or casted in the Signatory Parties.
Manufacture from materials of headings 7206 or 7207, molten and moulded or casted in the Signatory Parties.
Manufacture from materials of headings 7206 or 7207, molten and moulded or casted in the Signatory Parties.
Manufacture from materials of headings 7206 or 7207, molten and moulded or casted in the Signatory Parties.
Manufacture from materials of headings 7206 or 7207, molten and moulded or casted in the Signatory Parties.
Manufacture from materials of headings 7206 or 7207, molten and moulded or casted in the Signatory Parties.
Manufacture from materials of headings 7206 or 7207, molten and moulded or casted in the Signatory Parties.
Manufacture from materials of headings 7206 or 7207, molten and moulded or casted in the Signatory Parties.
Manufacture from materials of headings 7206 or 7207, molten and moulded or casted in the Signatory Parties.
Manufacture from materials of headings 7206 or 7207, molten and moulded or casted in the Signatory Parties.
Manufacture from materials of headings 7206 or 7207, molten and moulded or casted in the Signatory Parties.
Manufacture from materials of headings 7206 or 7207, molten and moulded or casted in the Signatory Parties.
Manufacture from materials of headings 7206 or 7207, molten and moulded or casted in the Signatory Parties.
Manufacture from materials of headings 7206 or 7207, molten and moulded or casted in the Signatory Parties.
Manufacture from materials of headings 7206 or 7207, molten and moulded or casted in the Signatory Parties.
Manufacture from materials of headings 7206 or 7207, molten and moulded or casted in the Signatory Parties.
Manufacture from materials of headings 7206 or 7207, molten and moulded or casted in the Signatory Parties.
Manufacture from materials of headings 7206 or 7207, molten and moulded or casted in the Signatory Parties.
Manufacture from materials of headings 7206 or 7207, molten and moulded or casted in the Signatory Parties.
Manufacture from materials of headings 7206 or 7207, molten and moulded or casted in the Signatory Parties.
Manufacture from materials of headings 7206 or 7207, molten and moulded or casted in the

701410	Manufacture from materials of headings 7206 or 7207, molten and moulded or casted in the
7214.10	Signatory Parties.
7214.20	Manufacture from materials of headings 7206 or 7207, molten and moulded or casted in the Signatory Parties.
7214.30	Manufacture from materials of headings 7206 or 7207, molten and moulded or casted in the Signatory Parties.
7214.91	Manufacture from materials of headings 7206 or 7207, molten and moulded or casted in the Signatory Parties.
7214.99	Manufacture from materials of headings 7206 or 7207, molten and moulded or casted in the Signatory Parties.
7215.10	Manufacture from materials of headings 7206 or 7207, molten and moulded or casted in the Signatory Parties.
7215.50	Manufacture from materials of headings 7206 or 7207, molten and moulded or casted in the Signatory Parties.
7215.90	Manufacture from materials of headings 7206 or 7207, molten and moulded or casted in the Signatory Parties.
7216.10	Manufacture from materials of headings 7206 or 7207, molten and moulded or casted in the Signatory Parties.
7216.21	Manufacture from materials of headings 7206 or 7207, molten and moulded or casted in the Signatory Parties.
7216.22	Manufacture from materials of headings 7206 or 7207, molten and moulded or casted in the Signatory Parties.
7216.31	Manufacture from materials of headings 7206 or 7207, molten and moulded or casted in the Signatory Parties.
7216.32	Manufacture from materials of headings 7206 or 7207, molten and moulded or casted in the Signatory Parties.
7216.33	Manufacture from materials of headings 7206 or 7207, molten and moulded or casted in the Signatory Parties.
7216.50	Manufacture from materials of headings 7206 or 7207, molten and moulded or casted in the Signatory Parties.
7217.10	Manufacture from materials of headings 7206 or 7207, molten and moulded or casted in the Signatory Parties.
7217.20	Manufacture from materials of headings 7206 or 7207, molten and moulded or casted in the Signatory Parties.
7217.30	Manufacture from materials of headings 7206 or 7207, molten and moulded or casted in the Signatory Parties.
7217.90	Manufacture from materials of headings 7206 or 7207, molten and moulded or casted in the Signatory Parties.
7219.33	Manufacture from materials of heading 7218, molten and moulded or casted in the Signatory Parties.
7219.34	Manufacture from materials of heading 7218, molten and moulded or casted in the Signatory Parties.
7219.35	Manufacture from materials of heading 7218, molten and moulded or casted in the Signatory Parties.
7219.90	Manufacture from materials of heading 7218, molten and moulded or casted in the Signatory Parties.
7220.12	Manufacture from materials of heading 7218, molten and moulded or casted in the Signatory Parties.
7222.20	Manufacture from materials of heading 7218, molten and moulded or casted in the Signatory Parties.
7222.30	Manufacture from materials of heading 7218, molten and moulded or casted in the Signatory Parties.

7223.00	Manufacture from materials of heading 7218, molten and moulded or casted in the Signatory Parties.
7225.11	Manufacture from materials of heading 7224, molten and moulded or casted in the Signatory Parties.
7225.19	Manufacture from materials of heading 7224, molten and moulded or casted in the Signatory Parties.
7225.91	Manufacture from materials of heading 7224, molten and moulded or casted in the Signatory Parties.
7225.92	Manufacture from materials of heading 7224, molten and moulded or casted in the Signatory Parties.
7225.99	Manufacture from materials of heading 7224, molten and moulded or casted in the Signatory Parties.
7226.11	Manufacture from materials of heading 7224, molten and moulded or casted in the Signatory Parties.
7226.19	Manufacture from materials of heading 7224, molten and moulded or casted in the Signatory Parties.
7228.10	Manufacture from materials of heading 7224, molten and moulded or casted in the Signatory Parties.
7228.20	Manufacture from materials of heading 7224, molten and moulded or casted in the Signatory Parties.
7228.30	Manufacture from materials of heading 7224, molten and moulded or casted in the Signatory Parties.
7228.40	Manufacture from materials of heading 7224, molten and moulded or casted in the Signatory Parties.
7228.50	Manufacture from materials of heading 7224, molten and moulded or casted in the Signatory Parties.
7228.60	Manufacture from materials of heading 7224, molten and moulded or casted in the Signatory Parties.
7304.19	Manufacture from materials of headings 7206, 7207, 7218 or 7224, molten and moulded or casted in the Signatory Parties.
7304.22	Manufacture from materials of headings 7206, 7207, 7218 or 7224, molten and moulded or casted in the Signatory Parties.
7304.23	Manufacture from materials of headings 7206, 7207, 7218 or 7224, molten and moulded or casted in the Signatory Parties.
7304.24	Manufacture from materials of headings 7206, 7207, 7218 or 7224, molten and moulded or casted in the Signatory Parties.
7304.29	Manufacture from materials of headings 7206, 7207, 7218 or 7224, molten and moulded or casted in the Signatory Parties.
7304.31	Manufacture from materials of headings 7206, 7207, 7218 or 7224, molten and moulded or casted in the Signatory Parties.
7304.39	Manufacture from materials of headings 7206, 7207, 7218 or 7224, molten and moulded or casted in the Signatory Parties.
7304.49	Manufacture from materials of headings 7206, 7207, 7218 or 7224, molten and moulded or casted in the Signatory Parties.
7304.51	Manufacture from materials of headings 7206, 7207, 7218 or 7224, molten and moulded or casted in the Signatory Parties.
7304.59	Manufacture from materials of headings 7206, 7207, 7218 or 7224, molten and moulded or casted in the Signatory Parties.
7304.90	Manufacture from materials of headings 7206, 7207, 7218 or 7224, molten and moulded or casted in the Signatory Parties.
7501.50	custod in the signatory rarties.

	Manufacture from materials of headings 7206, 7207, 7218 or 7224, molten and moulded or
7305.12	casted in the Signatory Parties.
7305.19	Manufacture from materials of headings 7206, 7207, 7218 or 7224, molten and moulded or casted in the Signatory Parties.
7305.20	Manufacture from materials of headings 7206, 7207, 7218 or 7224, molten and moulded or casted in the Signatory Parties.
7305.31	Manufacture from materials of headings 7206, 7207, 7218 or 7224, molten and moulded or casted in the Signatory Parties.
7305.39	Manufacture from materials of headings 7206, 7207, 7218 or 7224, molten and moulded or casted in the Signatory Parties.
7305.90	Manufacture from materials of headings 7206, 7207, 7218 or 7224, molten and moulded or casted in the Signatory Parties.
7306.11	Manufacture from materials of headings 7206, 7207, 7218 or 7224, molten and moulded or casted in the Signatory Parties.
7306.19	Manufacture from materials of headings 7206, 7207, 7218 or 7224, molten and moulded or casted in the Signatory Parties.
7306.21	Manufacture from materials of headings 7206, 7207, 7218 or 7224, molten and moulded or casted in the Signatory Parties.
7306.29	Manufacture from materials of headings 7206, 7207, 7218 or 7224, molten and moulded or casted in the Signatory Parties.
7306.30	Manufacture from materials of headings 7206, 7207, 7218 or 7224, molten and moulded or casted in the Signatory Parties.
7306.50	Manufacture from materials of headings 7206, 7207, 7218 or 7224, molten and moulded or casted in the Signatory Parties.
7306.61	Manufacture from materials of headings 7206, 7207, 7218 or 7224, molten and moulded or casted in the Signatory Parties.
7306.69	Manufacture from materials of headings 7206, 7207, 7218 or 7224, molten and moulded or casted in the Signatory Parties.
7306.90	Manufacture from materials of headings 7206, 7207, 7218 or 7224, molten and moulded or casted in the Signatory Parties.
7308.10	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
7308.20	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
7309.00	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
7310.10	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
7310.21	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
7310.29	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
7311.00	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
7321.11	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
7321.81	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
7326.90	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
7411.22	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product

7412.10	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8003.00	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8207.19	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8207.30	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8301.10	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
8401.10	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8401.20	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8401.40	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8402.11	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8402.12	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8402.19	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8402.20	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8402.90	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8404.10	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8404.20	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8404.90	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8405.10	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8405.90	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8406.10	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8406.81	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8406.82	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8406.90	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8407.10	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8407.21	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product

8407.29	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8407.90	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8408.10	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8408.90	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8409.10	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8410.11	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8410.12	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8410.13	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8410.90	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8411.11	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8411.12	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8411.21	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8411.22	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8411.81	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8411.82	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8411.91	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8411.99	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8412.10	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8412.21	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8412.29	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8412.31	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8412.39	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8412.80	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8412.90	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product

8413.11	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8413.19	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8413.40	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8413.50	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8413.60	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8413.70	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8413.81	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8413.82	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8413.91	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8413.92	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8414.51	Manufacture from materials of any heading except that of the product, and in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8414.80	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8415.10	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8415.82	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8416.10	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8416.20	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8416.30	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8416.90	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8417.10	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8417.20	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8417.80	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8417.90	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8419.31	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8419.32	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product

8419.39	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8419.40	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8419.60	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8420.10	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8420.91	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8420.99	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8422.20	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8422.30	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8422.40	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8424.20	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8424.30	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8424.81	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8424.89	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8424.90	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8425.11	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8425.19	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8425.31	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8425.39	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8425.41	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8425.49	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8426.11	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8426.12	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8426.19	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8426.20	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product

8426.30	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8426.41	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8426.49	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8426.91	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8426.99	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8427.10	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8427.20	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8427.90	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8428.10	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8428.20	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8428.31	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8428.32	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8428.33	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8428.39	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8428.40	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8428.60	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8428.90	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8429.11	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8429.19	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8429.20	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8429.30	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8429.40	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8429.51	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8429.52	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product

8429.59	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8430.10	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8430.20	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8430.31	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8430.39	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8430.41	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8430.49	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8430.50	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8430.61	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8430.69	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8431.10	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8431.20	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8431.31	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8431.39	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8431.41	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8431.42	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8431.43	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8431.49	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8432.10	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8432.21	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8432.29	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8432.30	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8432.40	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8432.80	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product

8432.90	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8433.20	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8433.30	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8433.40	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8433.51	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8433.52	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8433.53	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8433.59	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8433.60	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8434.10	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8434.20	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8434.90	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8435.10	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8435.90	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8436.10	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8436.21	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8436.29	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8436.80	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8436.91	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8436.99	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8437.10	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8437.80	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8437.90	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8438.10	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product

8438.20	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8438.30	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8438.40	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8438.50	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8438.60	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8438.80	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8438.90	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8439.10	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8439.20	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8439.30	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8439.91	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8439.99	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8440.10	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8440.90	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8441.10	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8441.20	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8441.30	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8441.40	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8441.80	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8441.90	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8442.30	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8442.40	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8442.50	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8443.11	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product

8443.12	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8443.13	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8443.14	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8443.15	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8443.16	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8443.17	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8443.19	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8443.31	I Assembly and welding of all components into printed circuit board which implements the function of central processing (main board); II Integration of printed circuit board assembled according to item I, of others printed circuit boards (if exist) and other electric, mechanic and sub-assemblies in order to complete final product, and III Configuration of final product, software installing (just in the case) and operation tests. OR Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
8443.32	I Assembly and welding of all components into printed circuit board which implements the function of central processing (main board); II Integration of printed circuit board assembled according to item I, of others printed circuit boards (if exist) and other electric, mechanic and sub-assemblies in order to complete final product, and III Configuration of final product, software installing (just in the case) and operation tests. OR Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
8443.99	I Assembly and welding of all components into printed circuit board; II Configuration of final product, software installing (just in the case) and operation tests. OR Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
8444.00	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8445.11	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8445.12	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8445.13	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8445.19	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8445.20	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8445.30	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8445.40	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8445.90	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product

8446.10	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8446.21	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8446.29	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8446.30	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8447.11	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8447.12	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8447.20	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8447.90	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8448.11	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8448.19	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8448.20	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8448.31	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8448.32	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8448.33	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8448.39	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8448.42	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8448.49	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8448.51	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8448.59	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8449.00	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8451.40	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8451.50	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8451.80	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8452.21	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product

8452.29	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8452.30	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8452.90	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8453.10	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8453.20	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8453.80	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8453.90	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8454.10	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8454.20	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8454.30	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8454.90	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8455.10	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8455.21	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8455.22	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8455.30	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8455.90	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8456.10	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8456.20	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8456.30	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8456.90	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8457.10	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8457.20	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8457.30	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8458.11	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product

8458.19	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8458.91	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8458.99	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8459.10	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8459.21	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8459.29	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8459.31	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8459.39	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8459.40	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8459.51	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8459.59	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8459.61	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8459.69	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8459.70	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8460.11	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8460.19	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8460.21	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8460.29	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8460.31	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8460.39	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8460.40	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8460.90	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8461.20	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8461.30	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product

8461.40	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8461.50	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8461.90	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8462.10	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8462.21	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8462.29	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8462.31	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8462.39	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8462.41	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8462.49	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8462.91	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8462.99	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8463.10	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8463.20	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8463.30	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8463.90	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8464.10	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8464.20	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8464.90	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8465.10	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8465.91	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8465.92	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8465.93	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8465.94	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product

8465.95	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8465.96	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8465.99	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8466.10	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8466.20	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8466.30	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8466.91	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8466.92	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8466.93	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8466.94	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8467.11	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8467.19	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8467.81	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8467.89	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8467.91	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8467.92	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8468.20	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8468.80	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8468.90	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8470.50	I Assembly and welding of all components into printed circuit board which implements the function of central processing (main board); II Integration of printed circuit board assembled according to item I, of others printed circuit boards (if exist) and other electric, mechanic and sub-assemblies in order to complete final product, and III Configuration of final product, software installing (just in the case) and operation tests. OR Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.

8471.30	I Assembly and welding of all components into printed circuit board which implements the function of central processing (main board); II Integration of printed circuit board assembled according to item I, of others printed circuit boards (if exist) and other electric, mechanic and sub-assemblies in order to complete final product, and III Configuration of final product, software installing (just in the case) and operation tests. OR Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
8471.41	I Assembly and welding of all components into printed circuit board which implements the function of central processing (main board); II Integration of printed circuit board assembled according to item I, of others printed circuit boards (if exist) and other electric, mechanic and subassemblies in order to complete final product, and III Configuration of final product, software installing (just in the case) and operation tests. OR Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
8471.49	I Assembly and welding of all components into printed circuit board which implements the function of central processing (main board); II Integration of printed circuit board assembled according to item I, of others printed circuit boards (if exist) and other electric, mechanic and sub-assemblies in order to complete final product, and III Configuration of final product, software installing (just in the case) and operation tests. OR Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
8471.50	I Assembly and welding of all components into printed circuit board which implements the function of central processing (main board); II Integration of printed circuit board assembled according to item I, of others printed circuit boards (if exist) and other electric, mechanic and sub-assemblies in order to complete final product, and III Configuration of final product, software installing (just in the case) and operation tests. OR Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
8471.60	I Assembly and welding of all components into printed circuit board which implements the function of central processing (main board); II Integration of printed circuit board assembled according to item I, of others printed circuit boards (if exist) and other electric, mechanic and subassemblies in order to complete final product, and III Configuration of final product, software installing (just in the case) and operation tests. OR Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
8471.70	I Assembly and welding of all components into printed circuit board which implements the function of central processing (main board); II Integration of printed circuit board assembled according to item I, of others printed circuit boards (if exist) and other electric, mechanic and subassemblies in order to complete final product, and III Configuration of final product, software installing (just in the case) and operation tests. OR Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
8471.80	I Assembly and welding of all components into printed circuit board which implements the function of central processing (main board); II Integration of printed circuit board assembled according to item I, of others printed circuit boards (if exist) and other electric, mechanic and subassemblies in order to complete final product, and III Configuration of final product, software installing (just in the case) and operation tests. OR Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.

8471.90	I Assembly and welding of all components into printed circuit board which implements the function of central processing (main board); II Integration of printed circuit board assembled according to item I, of others printed circuit boards (if exist) and other electric, mechanic and sub-assemblies in order to complete final product, and III Configuration of final product, software installing (just in the case) and operation tests. OR Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
8472.30	I Assembly and welding of all components into printed circuit board which implements the function of central processing (main board); II Integration of printed circuit board assembled according to item I, of others printed circuit boards (if exist) and other electric, mechanic and sub-assemblies in order to complete final product, and III Configuration of final product, software installing (just in the case) and operation tests. OR Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
8472.90	I Assembly and welding of all components into printed circuit board which implements the function of central processing (main board); II Integration of printed circuit board assembled according to item I, of others printed circuit boards (if exist) and other electric, mechanic and subassemblies in order to complete final product, and III Configuration of final product, software installing (just in the case) and operation tests. OR Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
8473.29	I Assembly and welding of all components into printed circuit board; II Configuration of final product, software installing (just in the case) and operation tests. OR Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
8473.30	I Assembly and welding of all components into printed circuit board; II Configuration of final product, software installing (just in the case) and operation tests. OR Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
8473.40	I Assembly and welding of all components into printed circuit board; II Configuration of final product, software installing (just in the case) and operation tests. OR Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
8473.50	I Assembly and welding of all components into printed circuit board; II Configuration of final product, software installing (just in the case) and operation tests. OR Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
8474.10	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8474.20	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8474.31	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8474.32	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8474.39	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8474.80	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product

8474.90	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8475.10	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8475.21	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8475.29	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8475.90	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8477.10	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8477.20	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8477.30	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8477.40	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8477.51	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8477.59	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8477.80	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8477.90	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8478.10	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8478.90	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8479.10	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8479.20	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8479.30	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8479.40	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8479.50	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8479.60	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8479.81	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8479.82	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8479.89	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product

8479.90	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8480.10	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8480.20	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8480.30	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8480.41	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8480.49	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8480.50	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8480.60	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8480.71	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8480.79	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8481.10	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8481.20	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8481.30	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8481.40	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8481.90	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8483.10	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8483.40	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8483.60	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8483.90	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8484.20	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8486.20	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8487.10	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8487.90	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8501.64	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product

8504.21	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8504.22	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8504.23	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8504.33	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8504.34	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8504.40	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8504.90	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8506	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8511.10	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8511.20	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8511.30	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8511.80	I Assembly and welding of all components into printed circuit board which implements the function of central processing (main board); II Integration of printed circuit board assembled according to item I, of others printed circuit boards (if exist) and other electric, mechanic and sub-assemblies in order to complete final product, and III Configuration of final product, software installing (just in the case) and operation tests. OR Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8512.10	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8517.12	I Assembly and welding of all components into printed circuit board which implements the function of central processing (main board); II Integration of printed circuit board assembled according to item I, of others printed circuit boards (if exist) and other electric, mechanic and sub-assemblies in order to complete final product, and III Configuration of final product, software installing (just in the case) and operation tests. OR Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8517.18	I Assembly and welding of all components into printed circuit board which implements the function of central processing (main board); II Integration of printed circuit board assembled according to item I, of others printed circuit boards (if exist) and other electric, mechanic and sub-assemblies in order to complete final product, and III Configuration of final product, software installing (just in the case) and operation tests. OR Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.

8517.61	I Assembly and welding of all components into printed circuit board which implements the function of central processing (main board); II Integration of printed circuit board assembled according to item I, of others printed circuit boards (if exist) and other electric, mechanic and sub-assemblies in order to complete final product, and III Configuration of final product, software installing (just in the case) and operation tests. OR Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
8517.62	I Assembly and welding of all components into printed circuit board which implements the function of central processing (main board); II Integration of printed circuit board assembled according to item I, of others printed circuit boards (if exist) and other electric, mechanic and sub-assemblies in order to complete final product, and III Configuration of final product, software installing (just in the case) and operation tests. OR I Assembly and welding of all components in a minimum of 80% of printed circuit board per product; II Integration of printed circuit board assembled according to item I, of others printed circuit boards (if exist) and other electric, mechanic and sub-assemblies in order to complete final product, and III Configuration of final product, software installing (just in the case) and operation tests. OR Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
8517.69	I Assembly and welding of all components into printed circuit board which implements the function of central processing (main board); II Integration of printed circuit board assembled according to item I, of others printed circuit boards (if exist) and other electric, mechanic and sub-assemblies in order to complete final product, and III Configuration of final product, software installing (just in the case) and operation tests. OR Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
8517.70	I Assembly and welding of all components into printed circuit board; II Configuration of final product, software installing (just in the case) and operation tests. OR Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
8519.81	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8521.10	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8521.90	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8523.52	I Assembly and welding of all components into printed circuit board; II Configuration of final product, software installing (just in the case) and operation tests.OR Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
8523.59	I Assembly and welding of all components into printed circuit board; II Configuration of final product, software installing (just in the case) and operation tests.OR Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
8525.50	I Assembly and welding of all components into printed circuit board which implements the function of central processing (main board); II Integration of printed circuit board assembled according to item I, of others printed circuit boards (if exist) and other electric, mechanic and sub-assemblies in order to complete final product, and III Configuration of final product, software installing (just in the case) and operation tests.OR Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.

8525.60	I Assembly and welding of all components into printed circuit board which implements the function of central processing (main board); II Integration of printed circuit board assembled according to item I, of others printed circuit boards (if exist) and other electric, mechanic and sub-assemblies in order to complete final product, and III Configuration of final product, software installing (just in the case) and operation tests. OR Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
8528.51	I Assembly and welding of all components into printed circuit board which implements the function of central processing (main board); II Integration of printed circuit board assembled according to item I, of others printed circuit boards (if exist) and other electric, mechanic and sub-assemblies in order to complete final product, and III Configuration of final product, software installing (just in the case) and operation tests.OR Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
8528.61	I Assembly and welding of all components into printed circuit board which implements the function of central processing (main board); II Integration of printed circuit board assembled according to item I, of others printed circuit boards (if exist) and other electric, mechanic and sub-assemblies in order to complete final product, and III Configuration of final product, software installing (just in the case) and operation tests.OR Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
8528.71	I Assembly and welding of all components into printed circuit board which implements the function of central processing (main board); II Integration of printed circuit board assembled according to item I, of others printed circuit boards (if exist) and other electric, mechanic and sub-assemblies in order to complete final product, and III Configuration of final product, software installing (just in the case) and operation tests. OR Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
8529.90	I Assembly and welding of all components into printed circuit board; II Configuration of final product, software installing (just in the case) and operation tests. OR Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
8531.20	I Assembly and welding of all components into printed circuit board which implements the function of central processing (main board); II Integration of printed circuit board assembled according to item I, of others printed circuit boards (if exist) and other electric, mechanic and sub-assemblies in order to complete final product, and III Configuration of final product, software installing (just in the case) and operation tests. OR Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
8537.10	I Assembly and welding of all components into printed circuit board which implements the function of central processing (main board); II Integration of printed circuit board assembled according to item I, of others printed circuit boards (if exist) and other electric, mechanic and sub-assemblies in order to complete final product, and III Configuration of final product, software installing (just in the case) and operation tests. OR Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
8538.90	I Assembly and welding of all components into printed circuit board; II Configuration of final product, software installing (just in the case) and operation tests. OR Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.

8541.10	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8543.70	I Assembly and welding of all components into printed circuit board which implements the function of central processing (main board); II Integration of printed circuit board assembled according to item I, of others printed circuit boards (if exist) and other electric, mechanic and sub-assemblies in order to complete final product, and III Configuration of final product, software installing (just in the case) and operation tests. OR Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
8546.20	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8547.20	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8547.90	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8601.10	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8601.20	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8602.10	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8602.90	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8603.10	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8603.90	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8604.00	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8605.00	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8606.10	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8606.30	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8606.91	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8606.92	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8606.99	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8607.11	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8607.12	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8607.19	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8607.21	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product

8607.29	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8607.30	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8607.91	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8607.99	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8608.00	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8609.00	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8701.10	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8701.30	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8701.90	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8704.10	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8706.00	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8707.90	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8708.29	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8708.30	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8708.40	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8708.50	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8708.70	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8708.94	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8709.11	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8709.19	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8709.90	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8714.99	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8716.20	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8802.11	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product

8802.12	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8802.20	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8802.30	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8802.40	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8802.60	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8803.10	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8803.20	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8803.30	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8803.90	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8805.10	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8805.21	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8805.29	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8901.10	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8901.20	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8901.30	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8901.90	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8902.00	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8904.00	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8905.10	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8905.20	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8905.90	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8906.10	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8906.90	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
8907.10	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product

8907.90	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
9002.11	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
9005.80	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
9005.90	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
9006.10	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
9006.30	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
9007.19	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
9007.20	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
9007.91	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
9007.92	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
9008.20	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
9010.10	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
9010.50	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
9010.90	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
9013.10	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
9017.10	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
9017.90	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
9018.11	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
9018.12	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
9018.13	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
9018.14	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
9018.19	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
9018.20	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
9018.41	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product

Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
I Assembly and welding of all components into printed circuit board which implements the function of central processing (main board); II Integration of printed circuit board assembled according to item I, of others printed circuit boards (if exist) and other electric, mechanic and subassemblies in order to complete final product, and III Configuration of final product, software installing (just in the case) and operation tests. OR Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
I Assembly and welding of all components into printed circuit board which implements the function of central processing (main board); II Integration of printed circuit board assembled according to item I, of others printed circuit boards (if exist) and other electric, mechanic and sub-assemblies in order to complete final product, and III Configuration of final product, software installing (just in the case) and operation tests. OR Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
I Assembly and welding of all components into printed circuit board which implements the function of central processing (main board); II Integration of printed circuit board assembled according to item I, of others printed circuit boards (if exist) and other electric, mechanic and sub-assemblies in order to complete final product, and III Configuration of final product, software installing (just in the case) and operation tests. OR Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
I Assembly and welding of all components into printed circuit board which implements the function of central processing (main board); II Integration of printed circuit board assembled according to item I, of others printed circuit boards (if exist) and other electric, mechanic and sub-assemblies in order to complete final product, and III Configuration of final product, software installing (just in the case) and operation tests. OR Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
I Assembly and welding of all components into printed circuit board which implements the function of central processing (main board); II Integration of printed circuit board assembled according to item I, of others printed circuit boards (if exist) and other electric, mechanic and sub-assemblies in order to complete final product, and III Configuration of final product, software installing (just in the case) and operation tests. OR Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.

9030.90	I Assembly and welding of all components into printed circuit board which implements the function of central processing (main board); II Integration of printed circuit board assembled according to item I, of others printed circuit boards (if exist) and other electric, mechanic and sub-assemblies in order to complete final product, and III Configuration of final product, software installing (just in the case) and operation tests. OR Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
9031.80	I Assembly and welding of all components into printed circuit board which implements the function of central processing (main board); II Integration of printed circuit board assembled according to item I, of others printed circuit boards (if exist) and other electric, mechanic and sub-assemblies in order to complete final product, and III Configuration of final product, software installing (just in the case) and operation tests. OR Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
9032.89	I Assembly and welding of all components into printed circuit board which implements the function of central processing (main board); II Integration of printed circuit board assembled according to item I, of others printed circuit boards (if exist) and other electric, mechanic and sub-assemblies in order to complete final product, and III Configuration of final product, software installing (just in the case) and operation tests. OR Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
9032.90	I Assembly and welding of all components into printed circuit board; II Configuration of final product, software installing (just in the case) and operation tests. OR Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product.
9107.00	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
9402.90	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product
9406.00	Manufacture in which the value of all the non-originating materials used does not exceed 45% of the price of the product

ANNEX IV.1 CODE OF CONDUCT FOR ARBITRATORS OF THE ARBITRATION TRIBUNAL

Definitions

- 1. In this Code of Conduct:
 - a) "arbitrator" means a member of an Arbitration Tribunal effectively established under Article 14 of Chapter IV;
 - b) "assistant" means a person who, under the terms of appointment of an arbitrator, conducts, researches or provides assistance to the arbitrator;
 - c) "proceeding", means an arbitration proceeding under Section V of Chapter IV.

Commitment to the Process

- 2. The arbitrators shall abide by the terms of Chapter IV, the rules set out in this Code of Conduct and the Rules of Procedure.
- 3. The arbitrators shall be independent and impartial, shall avoid direct or indirect conflicts of interest and shall respect the confidentiality of the proceedings established in Chapter IV so as to preserve the integrity and impartiality of the dispute settlement mechanism.

Disclosure Obligations

- 4. To ensure the observance of this Code each arbitrator, prior to the acceptance of his/her selection, shall disclose the existence of any interest, relationship or matter that he/she could reasonably be expected to know and that is likely to affect or could raise justifiable doubt as to the arbitrator's independence or impartiality, including public statements of personal opinion on issues relevant to the dispute and any professional relationship with any person or organization with interest in the case.
- 5. The disclosure obligation is a continuing duty which requires an arbitrator to disclose any such interests, relationships or matters that may arise during any stage of the proceeding. The arbitrator shall disclose such interests, relationships or matters by informing the Joint Committee, in writing, for consideration by the parties.

Duties of Arbitrators

- 6. Upon selection, an arbitrator shall perform his/her duties thoroughly and expeditiously throughout the course of the proceeding, and with fairness and diligence.
- 7. An arbitrator shall consider only those issues raised in the proceeding and necessary for an award and shall not delegate this duty to any other person.

- 8. An arbitrator shall take all appropriate steps to ensure that his or her assistant is aware of, and complies with, paragraphs 13, 17, 18 and 19 of this Code of Conduct.
- 9. An arbitrator shall not engage in "ex parte" contacts concerning the proceeding.

Independence and Impartiality of Arbitrators

- 10. As stated in Article 13.2 of Chapter IV, the arbitrator shall exercise his/her position without accepting or seeking instructions from any government, international, governmental or non-governmental organization or any private source, and shall not have intervened in any previous stage of the dispute assigned to him/her.
- 11. An arbitrator shall be independent and impartial and shall not be influenced by self interest, political considerations or public opinion.
- 12. An arbitrator shall not, directly or indirectly, incur any obligation or accept any benefit that would in any way interfere with, or which could give rise to justifiable doubts as to, the proper performance of his/her duties.
- 13. An arbitrator may not use his/her position on the Arbitration Tribunal to advance any personal or private interests.
- 14. An arbitrator may not allow financial, business, professional, family or social relationships or responsibilities to influence his or her conduct or judgment.
- 15. An arbitrator must avoid entering into any relationship or acquiring any financial interest that is likely to affect his or her impartiality.

Obligations of Former Arbitrators

16. All former arbitrators shall avoid any kind of derived advantage from the decision or award of the Arbitration Tribunal.

Confidentiality

- 17. No arbitrator or former arbitrator shall at any time disclose or use any non-public information concerning a proceeding or acquired during a proceeding except for the purposes of that proceeding and shall not, in any case, disclose or use any such information to gain personal advantage or advantage for others or to adversely affect the interest of others.
- 18. An arbitrator shall not disclose an arbitration award prior to its publication in accordance with Article 18 of Chapter IV.
- 19. An arbitrator or former arbitrator shall not at any time disclose the deliberations of an arbitration proceeding, or any arbitrator's view.

Statement of Agreement

20. In accordance with Article 13.5 of Chapter IV, the arbitrators shall, immediately after their designation, sign the following Statement of Agreement:

STATEMENT OF AGREEMENT

By means of this Statement of Agreement I accept the appointment to hereby act as an arbitrator in accordance with Chapter IV of the Free Trade Agreement between MERCOSUR and the Arab Republic of Egypt, including the Code of Conduct and the Rules of Procedure annexed thereto.

I declare not to have any interest in the dispute or any other reason that could be an impediment to my continuing duty to serve on the Arbitration Tribunal established with the purpose of settling this dispute between the parties.

I undertake to act independently, impartially and with integrity and to avoid direct and indirect conflicts of interests and not to accept third party suggestions or orders, as well as not to receive remuneration related to this performance except that comprised in the Chapter IV of the Agreement.

I undertake to disclose herewith and in the future any information likely to affect my independence and impartiality, or which could give rise to justifiable doubts as to the integrity and impartiality of this dispute settlement mechanism.

I undertake to respect my obligations regarding the confidentiality of the dispute settlement proceedings, as well as the content of my vote.

Moreover, I accept the possibility of being required to serve after the rendering of the Award, in accordance with Article 20 of Chapter IV of the Agreement.

ANNEX IV.2 RULES OF PROCEDURE

Definitions

1. In these rules:

- a) "adviser" means a person retained by a party to advise or assist that party in connection with the Arbitration Tribunal proceeding;
- b) "complaining party" means any party, as defined in Article 3 of Chapter IV that requests the establishment of an Arbitration Tribunal under Article 11 of Chapter IV:
- c) "party complained against" means the party against whom a dispute is brought arising from the alleged non fulfillment of the provisions of the Agreement or the Joint Committee decisions taken pursuant to the Agreement;
- d) "Arbitration Tribunal" means a Tribunal established under Article 14 of Chapter IV; and,
- e) "representative of a party" means an employee or any person appointed by a government department or agency or any other public entity of a party.

Notifications

- 2. Any notifications between MERCOSUR or its Member States and Egypt shall be sent, in the case of MERCOSUR, to the Pro Tempore Presidency or to the National Coordinators of the Common Market Group, as the case may be; and in the case of Egypt, to the Ministry of Trade and Industry.
- 3. The parties and the Arbitration Tribunal shall transmit any request, notice, written submission or other document by delivery against receipt, registered post, courier, facsimile transmission, telex, telegram or any other means of telecommunication that provides a record of the sending thereof. A copy of the documents shall also be provided in electronic format.
- 4. The documents submitted by the parties shall be signed by the duly authorized representatives of the party in order to be considered officially submitted to the Arbitration Tribunal.
- 5. Minor errors of a clerical nature in any request, notice, written submission or other document related to the arbitration panel proceeding may be corrected by delivery of a new document clearly indicating the changes.
- 6. Notifications, documents and requests of all types shall be deemed to be received, on the date upon which the electronic version of them is received.

Record of the Meetings of the Tribunal

7. The Arbitration Tribunal shall record minutes of the meetings held during each proceeding, which shall be kept in the files of the dispute.

Commencing the Arbitration

8. Unless the parties agree otherwise, the Arbitration Tribunal within seven (7) days of its establishment shall contact the parties in order to determine such matters that the parties or the Arbitration Tribunal deem appropriate.

Initial Submissions

9. The complaining party shall deliver its initial written submission to the other party and to each of the arbitrators, no later than fifteen (15) days after the date of establishment of the Arbitration Tribunal.

This submission shall:

- a) designate a duly authorized representative;
- b) inform the service address, telephone numbers and e-mail addresses to which communications arising in the course of the proceeding shall be sent;
- c) include a summary of the relevant facts and circumstances;
- d) indicate the relevant provisions of the Agreement and the legal basis of the complaint;
- e) state clearly the party's claim; including identification of the measures at issue and an indication of the legal basis for the complaint; a request for an award addressing the issue of fulfillment /non-fulfillment of the provisions of the Agreement or Joint Committee decisions taken pursuant to the Agreement;
- f) include supporting evidence, including expert or technical opinion, and specify any other evidence which cannot be produced at the time of the submission, but will be presented to the Arbitration Tribunal before or during the first hearing; and,
- g) be dated and signed.
- 10. The party complained against shall deliver its written counter-submission to the other party and to each of the arbitrators, no later than twenty (20) days after the date of delivery of the initial written submission.

This submission shall:

- a) designate a duly authorized representative;
- b) inform the service address, telephone numbers and e-mail addresses to which communications arising in the course of the proceeding shall be sent;
- c) state the facts and arguments upon which its defense is based;
- d) include supporting evidence and specify any other evidence, including expert or technical opinion, which cannot be produced at the time of the submission, but will be presented to the Arbitration Tribunal during or before the first hearing; and.
- e) be dated and signed.

Work of Arbitration Tribunal

- 11. The chairperson of the Arbitration Tribunal shall preside at all its meetings.
- 12. Unless provided otherwise in these rules, the Arbitration Tribunal may conduct its activities by any means, including telephone, facsimile transmissions, computer links or video-conference.
- 13. Only arbitrators may take part in the deliberations of the Arbitration Tribunal but the Arbitration Tribunal may permit their assistants to be present at its deliberations.
- 14. The drafting of the award or any decision shall remain the exclusive responsibility of the Arbitration Tribunal.
- 15. If a procedural question arises that is not covered by these rules, the Arbitration Tribunal, after consulting the parties, may adopt the appropriate procedure.
- 16. Notwithstanding Article 15.2 of Chapter IV, when the Arbitration Tribunal considers, after consulting the parties, that there is a need for modifying any time-limit or any other procedure, it shall propose a new procedure or timeframe to the parties by means of a written notification. Any modification of procedure or of time-limits shall be mutually agreed between the parties.

Hearings

- 17. The party complained against shall be in charge of the logistical administration of the hearings, particularly the venue, the assistance of interpreters and other staff necessary, unless otherwise agreed.
- 18. The chairperson shall fix the date and time of the hearing in consultation with the parties and the other members of the Arbitration Tribunal, and confirm this in writing to the parties, no later than fifteen (15) days prior to the hearing.

- 19. Unless the parties agree otherwise, the hearing shall be held in a place to be decided upon by the party complained against.
- 20. The Arbitration Tribunal may convene additional hearings if the parties so agree.
- 21. All arbitrators shall be present at hearings.
- 22. The following persons may attend the hearing:
 - a) representatives of the parties;
 - b) advisors to the parties;
 - c) administrative staff, interpreters and translators; and,
 - d) arbitrators' assistants.

Only the representatives of and advisors to the parties may address the Arbitration Tribunal.

- 23. No later than five (5) days before the date of a hearing, each party shall deliver a list of the names of persons who will make oral arguments or presentations at the hearing on behalf of that party and of other representatives or advisers who will be attending the hearing.
- 24. The Arbitration Tribunal shall conduct the hearing in the following manner, ensuring that the complaining party and the party complained against are afforded equal time:
 - a) argument
 - (i) argument of the complaining party
 - (ii) argument of the party complained against
 - b) rebuttal argument
 - (i) rebuttal argument of the complaining party
 - (ii) rebuttal argument of the party complained against
- 25. The Arbitration Tribunal may direct questions to either party at any time during the hearing.
- 26. The Arbitration Tribunal shall arrange for a transcript of each hearing to be prepared and delivered as soon as possible to the parties.
- 27. Each party may deliver a supplementary written submission concerning any matter that arose during the hearing within ten (10) days of the date of the hearing.

Evidence

- 28. Parties shall submit all evidence to the Tribunal no later than during the course of the first hearing provided for in paragraph 17 other than evidence necessary for purposes of rebuttals and answers to questions. Exceptions to this procedure will be granted upon a showing of good cause. In such cases, the other party shall be accorded a period of time for comment on the newly submitted evidence, as the Tribunal deems appropriate.
- 29. All the evidence submitted by the parties shall be kept in the files of the dispute.
- 30. In case the parties so request, the Arbitration Tribunal shall hear witnesses or experts, in the presence of the parties, during the hearings.

Questions in Writing

- 31. The Arbitration Tribunal may at any time during the proceedings address questions in writing to the parties involved in the dispute and set a time-limit for submission of the responses. The parties shall receive a copy of any question put by the Tribunal.
- 32. A party shall also provide a copy of its written response to the Arbitration Tribunal's questions to the other parties. Each party shall be given the opportunity to provide written comments on the other party's reply within seven (7) days of the date of receipt.

Breaches to the Procedures

33. Whenever a party fails to submit in due time its initial written submission, is absent from a scheduled hearing or in any other way breaches the procedures without good and sufficient cause, the Tribunal shall, upon assessment of the aforesaid circumstances decide on its effect on the future course of the proceedings.

Arbitration Decisions and Award

- 34. Following the consideration of written submissions and oral arguments and twenty (20) days prior to the issuance of the award, the Tribunal shall submit its factual determinations to the parties to the dispute. Within ten (10) days the parties may submit comments in writing. Those comments shall not be binding upon the Tribunal.
- 35. The Arbitration Award and other decisions of the Arbitration Tribunal must contain the following details, in addition to any other elements which the Arbitration Tribunal may consider appropriate for inclusion:
 - a) the parties to the dispute;
 - b) the name and nationality of each of the members of the Arbitration Tribunal and the date of its establishment:

- c) the names of the representatives of the parties;
- d) the subject matter of the dispute;
- e) a report on the development of the arbitration procedure, including a summary of the actions taken and the arguments of each of the parties;
- f) the decision reached in relation to the dispute, indicating the factual and legal grounds;
- g) the period of time for compliance with the award, when appropriate;
- h) the date and place of issue; and,
- i) the signature of all the members of the Arbitration Tribunal.

"Ex parte" Contacts

- 36. The Arbitration Tribunal shall not meet or contact a party in the absence of the other parties.
- 37. No arbitrator may discuss any aspect of the subject matter of the proceedings with one party or other parties in the absence of the other arbitrators.